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Financial Highlights

MM E

2012 2011
—E-=fF —E——F %
US$'million US$'million Increase
BEXER BEET #
Operating Results G
Revenue & 100.6 95.8 5.0
EBITDA B ESH - BE - FER
AR A 3.4 1.2 183.3
Operating profit before investment R EW S NEHER
gains and restructuring costs Bij Z 4& &5 | 2.9 2.3 26.1
Profit for the year FEHF 2.8 0.6 366.7
Financial Position IR
Total assets BEBE 56.1 52.3 7.3
Cash and bank balances B4 RIRTTHE 19.8 17.5 13.1
Net assets BEFE 38.9 36.7 6.0
Financial Ratio B 5 b 2=
Current ratio (Times) TmEhE =R () 1.8 1.8 -
Gearing ratio (%) ERBELE (%) - - N/A T3 A
Dividends 2B
Interim dividend per share (HK cent) TP EHRE (BI) 0.88 0.31 183.9
Final dividend per share (HK cent) FREREARE B (GBL) 0.50 - N/A i@ A
Full year dividend per share (HK cents) &HE2FEME (GBIL) 1.38 0.31 345.2

Breakdown of Revenue by Nature
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Breakdown of Shipment Value by Market
BhiB8s 2N EERE
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Statement of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
T EFRITHAHRESE

Continuous efforts will be placed on
developing higher margin businesses,
as well as cultivating new business
opportunities as they arise.

BRTEBNHRENRESHES -
W AR AR ISR -
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On behalf of the board of directors (“Board"), | am pleased to
present the annual results of Linmark Group Limited (“Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “Linmark") for the
year ended 30 April 2012.

Over the past year, the global economic climate remained
turbulent, owing in part to the sovereign debt crisis in Europe
and poor employment outlook in the United States. The resultant
erosion in consumer confidence invariably led to a decline in
shipment value for the Group. Nevertheless, we were still able to
realise modest gains in both revenue and gross profit as a result of
increased focus on higher margin businesses.

AANERREZE ((ESB8]) MARENEEEFRAF
([HR2R ] EZREMBARGHE [AEE] X [HE)) #HE
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B ) 15 2 48 (B A 1 A AT SR 0 T K o BB UL - AT nee
EIRNEMNERENER - DA< KEREMBRSBMTE o

A A S T .
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Statement of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
TRERTHERREE

Qur ability to sustain growth with many of our key
customers despite adversity can largely be attributed to
our strong ties with them whom, faced with similarly
challenging conditions, elected not only to continue
conducting business with Linmark, but in certain
instances, increased orders in acknowledgement of
our expertise and aptitude for delivering high quality
services. This capacity to provide holistic solutions is
underscored by our product development capability and
it is a competitive advantage that has allowed us to
strengthen ties with existing customers - and enhances
their reliance on us - while attracting new customers
to the Group.

Aside from leveraging relations with customers old
and new, our capacity to explore and exploit untapped
markets and introduce products that are in step with
current trends further contributed to the positive
financial performance.

Moving forward, the Group expects the lacklustre
business environment will persist as economic
recovery in Europe looks set to be a protracted affair.
Nevertheless, we remain cautiously optimistic about
Linmark's prospects in view of our healthy ties with
customers and strong fundamentals in place. We
will continue to develop and introduce more quality
products and value-added services to our customers,
while concurrently examine locations where cost-

effective sourcing can be derived. What is more,
continuous efforts will be placed on developing higher
margin businesses, as well as cultivating new business
opportunities as they arise.

At this time, | would like to express my appreciation to
fellow members of the Board for their commitment and
guidance, as well as the management team and every
member of the Linmark workforce for their diligence
and dedication to the long-term wellbeing of the
Group. | wish to also convey my gratitude to all of our
shareholders for their unwavering trust.

WANG Lu Yen
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 13 July 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B IR B wm Mo AT

Business Review

Overview

During the year ended 30 April 2012, the Group continued to
be confronted with highly challenging business conditions,
due largely to economic uncertainties in Europe and the
United States. This consequently led to a contraction in
shipment value to approximately US$258.3 million (equivalent
to HK$2,014.7 million), a decline of approximately 7.8%
compared to approximately US$280.2 million (equivalent to
HK$2,185.6 million) last year. Nevertheless, the Group was
able to report increases in both revenue and gross profit
for the year as a result of increased focus on higher margin
businesses. Revenue rose by approximately 5.0% year on year
from approximately US$95.8 million (equivalent to HK$747.2
million) to approximately US$100.6 million (equivalent to
HK$784.7 million), while gross profit climbed by roughly 2.2%
from approximately US$23.0 million (equivalent to HK$179.4
million) last year to approximately US$23.5 million (equivalent
to HK$183.3 million) this year.

On cost side, Linmark also faced escalating labour costs
along with high inflation in its key sourcing markets over the
year. Nevertheless, the Group successfully contained general
and administrative expenses to a similar level with last year,
amounting to approximately US$22.0 million (equivalent to
HK$171.6 million). In addition, the restructuring activities
of the Group carried out last year had been completed
and there were no similar activities in the year under
review. Restructuring cost incurred last year amounted to
approximately US$1.6 million (equivalent to HK$12.5 million).

As a result, the Group achieved a profit after tax of
approximately US$2.8 million (equivalent to HK$21.8 million),
an increase of approximately 366.7% over approximately
US$0.6 million (equivalent to HK$4.7 million) recorded last
year.

T AYY ET TN T INrrreT

Segmental Analysis

Operating segmentation

The Group is organised into business units based on its products
and services. It maintains two reportable operating segments;
specifically, i) sales of merchandise including garments, fashion
accessories, labels, hardgoods and consumer electronic products;
and ii) provision of services including procurement and value-
added services relating to the procurement agency business.

Shipment value
For the year ended 30 April

2012 20M

US$' million US$' million

Provision of services 172.1 199.6
Sales of merchandise 86.2 80.6
Total 258.3 280.2

During the year under review, shipment value from the
provision of services declined by approximately 13.8% to
approximately US$172.1 million (equivalent to HK$1,342.4
million), accounting for roughly 66.6% of the Group's total
shipment value. The decline was largely due to a decrease in
inspection business, which brought relatively low margin to the
Group.

Shipment value from sales of merchandise increased by
approximately 6.9% to approximately US$86.2 million
(equivalent to HK$672.4 million), contributing to around 33.4%
of the Group's total shipment value. The increase in shipments
was mainly attributable to organic growth and business from
new customers.




¥KEE
BE
HE-_Z——FHNA=ZTHLEE TEHAREBELE
T AEEEBCELEEMRSEkE - H#meE
BTE = REWHE - B % F #280,200,000%K 7T (FHF R
2,185,600,0007% JT) T P& #97.8%Z %J258,300,0003 JT (*E
£ 7A2,014,7000008 70) c AT - AR ANEE pNE =
REFMEESNER K REMBEEE M- Hﬁzﬁn
M #995,800,0003 JT (#8 55 $2747,200,00078 JT) ¥ = 4
100,600,0003 J© (48 £ 72784,700,000/8 7T ) * & F F F+ 4
5.00% - 1M 3 F F 2 55 4923,000,0003F 7T (#82554179,400,000
7B JT) 18 2 4 4 #923,500,0005 7T (48 5 72183,300,00078
Jo)  EFH92.200 ©
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@R EFRAEKFE - 42200000035 T (HHE R
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1,600,0003 7T (F8%712,500,00078 7T ) °
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Geographical segmentation

Shipment value
For the year ended 30 April

2012 20M

US$' million US$" million

North America 120.2 133.7
Europe 70.3 71.1
Others 67.8 75.4
Total 258.3 280.2

During the year under review, shipments to North America
decreased by approximately 10.1% to approximately US$120.2
million (equivalent to HK$937.6 million). Nevertheless, North
America remained Linmark's largest market, contributing
approximately 46.5% of the Group's total shipment value.

Shipments to Europe decreased slightly to approximately
US$70.3 million (equivalent to HK$548.3 million). Europe
thus accounted for approximately 27.2% of the Group's total
shipment value.

Shipments grouped under "Others", comprising mainly
shipments to the southern hemisphere, amounted to
approximately US$67.8 million (equivalent to HK$528.8
million), representing approximately 26.3% of the Group's total
shipment value.

Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2012

Update on Indian Tax Case

In November 2010, the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal ("ITAT") in
India issued an order ("ITAT Order") regarding the tax appeals
lodged by the Group. The ITAT Order held that only 50% of the
commission income was attributed to the India operations of
Linmark International (Hong Kong) Limited (“Linmark HK"),
a subsidiary of the Company. Consequently, Linmark HK was
not liable to pay tax and related interest in respect of its India
operations for the years 1999/2000 to 2005/2006.

In February and May 2011, Linmark HK received an income tax
refund from the tax authority of India totalling approximately
INR19,031,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,800,000 or
US$361,000).

In August 2011, the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals)
("CITA") in India issued an order ("CITA Order") and held that
the penalty levied on Linmark HK in March 2010 had been
rescinded; hence, Linmark HK was not liable to pay the penalty
levied.

However, according to the advice of the Group's tax adviser,
the ITAT Order and CITA Order may be subject to further appeal
by the tax authority in India against the issues decided in
favour of Linmark HK. In view of this uncertainty, the Group
will not recognise the tax credit in the profit and loss accounts
until the refund of tax previously paid is certain.
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Hong Kong Tax Case

As of the date of the annual report, the Group received
protective assessments amounting to approximately
HK$84,000,000 (equivalent to US$10,769,000) from the Inland
Revenue Department in Hong Kong (“IRD") in respect of queries
on the modus operandi of the Group and the chargeability
of the profits for the years of assessment from 2003/2004 to
2005/20086.

In response to enquiries from IRD, an independent tax
adviser has been engaged to handle this case and the
relevant information has been furnished to IRD for review. In
addition, Tax Reserve Certificates amounting to HK$3,250,000
(equivalent to US$417,000) have been purchased by two
subsidiaries of the Company in pursuit of the holdover of tax
demanded under the protective assessments for these years.

Taking into account the advice given by the independent
tax adviser, the Group maintains the view that sufficient tax
provision has been made in the financial statements.

Financial Review

The Group's financial position remains healthy with a fixed
bank deposit of approximately US$2.0 million (equivalent
to HK$15.6 million), plus cash and cash equivalents of
approximately US$17.8 million (equivalent to HK$138.8
million) as at 30 April 2012. In addition, the Group has total
banking facilities of approximately US$32.9 million (equivalent
to HK$256.6 million) including borrowing facilities of
approximately US$0.4 million (equivalent to HK$3.1 million) as
at 30 April 2012.

The Group has a current ratio of 1.8 and a gearing ratio of
zero, based on no interest-bearing borrowings and total equity
of approximately US$38.9 million (equivalent to HK$303.4
million) as at 30 April 2012. There have not been any material
changes in the Group's borrowings since 30 April 2012.

Trade receivables increased from approximately US$5.1
million (equivalent to HK$39.8 million) as at 30 April 2011
to approximately US$5.4 million (equivalent to HK$42.1
million) as at 30 April 2012. Gross trade receivables aged over
90 days, which amounted to approximately US$0.8 million
(equivalent to HK$6.2 million), are being carefully monitored
by the management. Approximately US$0.7 million (equivalent
to HK$5.5 million) of these balances were covered by the
impairment.

The Group's net asset value as at 30 April 2012 was

approximately US$38.9 million (equivalent to HK$303.4
million).

Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2012

The Group had no material contingent liability as at 30 April
2012 and there has been no material change since then.

The majority of the Group's transactions during the year under
review were denominated in US dollars and Hong Kong dollars.
To minimise exchange risks, sales and purchases are generally
transacted in the same currency.

Remuneration Policy and Staff Development
Scheme

As at 30 April 2012, the Group had 416 staff members.
Total staff costs for the year under review amounted to
approximately US$14.4 million (equivalent to HK$112.3 million)
(2011: US$15.7 million (equivalent to HK$122.5 million)).
The Group offers competitive remuneration schemes to its
employees based on industry practices, along with individual
and the Group's performance. In addition, share options and
discretionary bonuses are also granted to eligible staff based
on both the Group's as well as individual performance.

Creditors’ Voluntary Liquidation of Linmark
Electronics Limited (“LEL")

On 28 July 2009, LEL, a company incorporated in the United
Kingdom ("UK") and a 60% subsidiary of the Company,
filed a notice of appointment of administrators in the UK
("“Administration”), pursuant to which joint administrators
("Administrators”) of LEL were appointed (“Appointment”)
according to paragraph 22 of Schedule B1 to the Insolvency
Act 1986 of the UK. Upon the Appointment, the legal control
of business of LEL was transferred from the directors of LEL to
the Administrators. Since then, the Company has lost control
over the financial and operating policies of LEL and therefore,
the financial results of LEL have ceased to be consolidated with
those of the Group upon the Appointment.

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 27
January 2010, according to the Administrators, on 25 January
2010 (UK time), LEL moved from Administration to creditors'
voluntary liquidation ("Liquidation”) and the Administrators
were appointed the liquidators ("Liquidators") pursuant to
paragraph 83 of Schedule B1 to the Insolvency Act 1986 of
the UK and as approved by the creditors of LEL. It was also
stated in the said announcement that the Liquidators would
adjudicate creditors' claims following which they anticipated
paying a dividend to the creditors of LEL; and further that
following such process, the Liquidators would take steps to
dissolve LEL.



EBRBKEER

RAFHRTEAY  AEBEREEAEER - =
TEEME-TETRH, CEEANFELEEERA RIS
BB ZHBAT2EH  BEESEHER ([H%
B 1) R T F £84,000,00078 7T (48 5 710,769,000
TT) °

MG BB ANEB D R IR 57 E R B It E
= WEREEBERAHEMEBER - i KAEM
ZWNBRARIEEBEEMNZSFEREETHEMKE
St 2 B E - B B B (83,250,000 7T (FE 5 12417,0003
TL) ZHEHE e

REEBUNKERNERZR  AEER/ERBHR
RAEH TN BIREHE -

B % B B8

AREBZHBRAEAER  RZE——FNA=+
B 2 iF B3 4R 17 77 3 £92,000,0003 7T (48 % 715,600,00078
L) BEBRE MBS EEEAE 417,800,000 T (FHER
138,800,000/ 7T) ° WA AEER T ——F MW A=+
B 7 $R1TREE #58 4932,900,0003 7T (%5 72256,600,00078
JT) - He B 1R E E gl & #£9400,0003% 7T (2 723,100,000
BIT) °

AEBR-_Z——FNA=Z+THZ R R A18 AT
HEEE R R 4255 4938,900,0003 7T (F8272303,400,000
BIL)tE R —FNA=Zt+HZEEARBL XA
T o REBEEEG T ——FMA =+ A UKW ELM
BAREE o

FEWE ZHRFHA T ——F WA=+ H 2 4957100,000%
JC (#85 1039,800,0008 ) ME T ——F W F =+
H 2 #75,400,0003 7T (#8%5 1242,100,0007 7T ) ° BR #% %90
X 7 FEUE 5 BR 7X 48 5 £9800,0003 7T (FH55526,200,00058
T0)  MERERERZE o WS H P 49700,0003
7t (FBZ5745,500,00058 7T ) DAERIE °

RZZE—Z—FWA=1+H AEBZEEFEY
38,900,0003 7T (#E55#2303,400,000/8 7T ) °

A X -
== ¢

R-TZE-——FWUA=1TRH AEEYEITMNEALARA
& BEftAERERAAL AREZHARREL B
MEAES -

AEERAOBEFERZKRBORFHAERTT KB TTHE
B RBEINERR -  BEE-—RENEREEETRS -

FMBRRETIREE
RZE—ZFWNA=ZFTH AEFEEB46HKE8T -
N[5l B E R B B A AN 48 B £914,400,000% 7T (FH F A
112,300,0007 7T) (= & — — 4 : 15,700,0003 JT (8 E R
122,500,000 70)) « NEEIZTEEN - BETEARBRR
AEBRBEARESFAERFNNTFIH IR - WIREASE
ERETBRARBERNGERE IR THREREMEIE
TEAT -

Linmark Electronics Limited ([LEL]) 3E{T{EARE
ABEE
N-—EEAFE+A-+NB - RER ([HE]) SRk
RAR A H0wER Y HEBARLELEERELEIEE
AZBAGFER (BB BEEE—AN\ANEBLEN
KBIENR  BEEALELZEBEEEA ((BBA) ([ZE
BE]) o RREETE - LELEB 2 AT hELY &
EHBEEWA Gt AR AL EHLELT B RELHE
FrmElg - Bl L M BEERZEETRETE
GAEREEMELED o

BUORRBR _E—TF-A -+ ERATEZRMARA
o REEEARENER R_T-FF—-A_-1+H
B CGREERE)  LEEHEREREREEEABDER
(B ER MEBADRBRE-ANRFBERE
MIRBIESIR RIELERAZHERZERBEA ([FE
AD) e Bt AARIRGIER - BRABREEAZ BRIELH
R I TEEARE DR & RILELZ B A ST B E X o
SEAILBIRIR - BB ARIRERT TR AR BLEL ©

MELEMERAT —T—_FFR

13



14

Management Discussion and Analysis
B ERwm T

In June 2012, the Group received a first and final dividend
amounting to approximately GBP44,000 (equivalent to
US$69,000) as one of the creditors of LEL, and such amount
will be recorded in the financial statements of the Group
for the year ending 30 April 2013. It is expected that the
Liquidators would be undertaking the required statutory and
administrative steps to close the Liquidation and to dissolve
LEL in about six months.

As disclosed in the interim report of the Company for the
six months ended 31 October 2009, the unaudited total net
liabilities of LEL included in the consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group amounted to approximately
US$5.3 million (equivalent to HK$41.3 million). Upon the
commencement of the Liquidation, a non-cash profit of
approximately US$5.3 million (equivalent to HK$41.3 million)
was recognised in the consolidated income statement for the
year ended 30 April 2010 of the Group as a gain on liquidation
of a subsidiary. Save for the gain on liquidation of a subsidiary
and dividend income as mentioned above, the Board does not
expect the Liquidation to have any other material impact on
the Group.

Prospects

In the light of lingering concerns over the European sovereign
debt crisis, the state of the global economy remains uncertain.
Economy in Eurozone continues to be weak while economic
recovery in the United States is anticipated to be slower
than previously expected. As both regions are saddled with
high unemployment, the business environment will remain
highly difficult. Combined with further waning of consumer
confidence, retailers particularly in Europe are expected to be
more conservative towards replenishing inventory.

Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2012

Faced with such uncertain outlook, the management will
focus more efforts on bolstering relations with existing
customers and partners; providing more value-added services,
including product and fabric development; promoting cross-
selling activities; and identifying more effective sourcing
opportunities. At the same time, the Group will direct greater
resources towards promoting its higher margin businesses, as
well as explore new markets to achieve business growth.

Promoting growth will invariably call for effective cost controls
as well. Despite the expected further escalation of labour cost
in the markets the Group operates in, the management will aim
at containing overall operating expenses, which will include
exploring alternative markets for sourcing.

In addition to seeking organic growth, the management will
look out for merger and acquisition opportunities that will
enhance the Group's product portfolio and markets or open
the way to new business horizons - the main emphasis being
on enhancing profit contributions to the Group and maximise
shareholders' value.

Despite the apparently turbulent business conditions that are
anticipated to persist, the management remains cautiously
optimistic about Linmark's financial performance in the coming
year.
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Biographical Details of Directors,
Senior Management and Company Secretary

55 oHEEENARWEER

Executive directors and senior management

Mr. WANG Lu Yen, aged 58, is an executive director
and the chairman of the Company and became the
chief executive officer of the Company with effect
from 8 October 2010. He is mainly responsible for the
Group's corporate and strategy planning and business
development. Mr. Wang joined the Group in 1998 as
chairman. He is a co-founder, an executive director
and chairman of Roly International Holdings Ltd. ("Roly

WANG Lu Yen
TR

International”), an intermediate holding company
of the Company which was listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited from 1996 to 2007.

Mr. Wang has over 30 years of experience in the trading and distribution business.
Mr. Wang is a vice-chairman of China Association for Middle and Small Commercial
Enterprises, a member of the China Overseas Friendship Association, a member of
Shanghai Chinese Overseas Friendship Association, a member of The Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Central Policy Unit Pan-Pearl River
Delta Panel, a member of Hong Kong Association for the Promotion of Peaceful
Reunification of China, a honorary court member of The Hong Kong Baptist
University, a member of Hong Kong/Taiwan Business Cooperation Committee, the
honorary chairman of Taiwan Business Association (Hong Kong) Limited, a director
of the Soochow Management Academic Foundation of Soochow University and
a director of the Taiwan Design Center. Mr. Wang was awarded the Directors of
The Year Awards 2005 hosted by The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He holds a
Bachelor's degree in Business Administration from Soochow University, Taiwan and
an EMBA degree from Guanghua School of Management, Peking University, the
People's Republic of China ("PRC").

h;&

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis
H5EF

Mr. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis, aged 42, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company with effect
from 1 September 2010. Mr. Wong has been the
chief financial officer of the Group since 2006 and
oversees the finance, legal, shipping, IT and HR
functions of the Group. Prior to that, Mr. Wong was

the head of corporate development department of Roly

International, an intermediate holding company of the
Company, primarily responsible for Roly International
and the Group's corporate development, mergers
and acquisitions and investor relations activities.
Before joining Roly International in 2000, Mr. Wong
had worked at several major international financial institutions where he gained
extensive experience in finance, investments and banking. Mr. Wong holds a Master
of Business Administration degree in finance from Boston University in the United
States, and a Bachelor of Science degree from The University of British Columbia in
Canada.
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Non-executive director

Mr. WONG Wai Ming, aged 54, is a non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Wong has been an
independent non-executive director of the Company
since it was listed in 2002 and was redesignated as an

executive director of the Company in 2005 and then

5 further redesignated as a non-executive director of
“ - the Company in 2007. Mr. Wong has been the chief
WONG Wai‘l\/lling financial officer and senior vice president of Lenovo
ZiE Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange"), since July 2007. He is also an independent non-executive director
of China Unicom (Hong Kong) Limited, which is listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong was a non-executive director of Kingsoft Corporation
Limited from 2007 to 2010 and an independent non-executive director of I.T Limited
from 2004 to 2011, both of which are also listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Wong was an executive director and chief executive officer of Roly
International from 2005 to 2007. He was previously an investment banker with over
16 years of experience in investment banking business in Greater China. Mr. Wong
is a chartered accountant of the UK and an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"). He holds a Bachelor's degree
of Science (with Honours) in Management Sciences from The Victoria University of
Manchester, the UK.

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang, aged 51, has been an
independent non-executive director of the Company
since 2002. Mr. Wang is also a board and audit
committee member of NASDAQ listed Home Inns

& Hotels Management Inc., one of China's leading
hotel chains. Previously, Mr. Wang was a member of

a the board and chief executive officer of GigaMedia
WANG Arthur Minhshiang Limited, a NASDAQ listed online entertainment and
Ta game provider. Mr. Wang was also previously a co-

founder and executive director of KGI Asia Limited,

the investment banking arm of the Koos Group of
Taiwan. Mr. Wang has also served on the board of directors of several finance and
technology companies in the region and was previously a member of the board and
audit committee chair of Softbank Investment International (Strategic) Limited (now
known as China Renji Medical Group Limited), the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wang received his Juris Doctorate degree
from Yale Law School and practised corporate and securities law in Hong Kong and
New York. He also holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of California
at Los Angeles in the US.
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Biographical Details of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

Ex  RATEEMRARMEERHR

Independent non-executive directors (continued)

Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius, aged 64, has been an
independent non-executive director of the Company
since 2005. Mr. Tse is a fellow of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and
the HKICPA. Mr. Tse is a past president and the past
chairman and a current member of the Audit Committee
of the HKICPA. He joined KPMG in 1976, became a
partner in 1984 and retired in March 2003. Mr. Tse was
a non-executive chairman of KPMG's operations in the
PRC and a member of the KPMG China advisory board
from 1997 to 2000. Mr. Tse is currently an independent non-executive director
of Wing Hang Bank, Limited, CNOOC Limited, China Telecom Corporation Limited,
Sinofert Holdings Limited and SJM Holdings Limited, all listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Tse was an independent non-executive director of China

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius
HEDT

Construction Bank Corporation, which shares are also listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, from 2004 to 2010. Mr. Tse is a member of the International
Advisory Council of the People's Municipal Government of Wuhan. Mr. Tse holds a
Bachelor of Social Sciences degree from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS, aged 65, has
been an independent non-executive director of the
Company since 2008. He became the chief executive
officer of Freemans Grattan Holdings of Otto Group in
2008. From 1994 to 2007, he was managing director of
Otto International Asia and was responsible for all of
its sourcing offices and trading companies in the Asia

Pacific region. Prior to that, he worked his way through

Jakob Jacobus Koert
TULLENERS

different aspects of the garment industry for 22 years
in South Africa. Having been managing director for the
manufacturing subsidiary of a major retailer in South Africa and a board member of
such retailer for 4 years, he joined a large American apparel manufacturer in Hong
Kong in 1992. He holds a Bachelor's degree in Garment Engineering received from a
college in Netherlands.

Company secretary

Ms. CHEUNG Hoi Yin, Brenda, aged 44, is the company secretary of the Company
and Roly International. Ms. Cheung joined a subsidiary of Roly International in 1997
as an assistant company secretary. She has over 20 years of company secretarial
experience gained in listed companies. Ms. Cheung holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
in Accountancy and is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, the UK.
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Corporate Governance Report

On 1 April 2012, the Code on Corporate Governance Practices ("Former
CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities ("Listing Rules") on the Stock Exchange was amended and
renamed as the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (“New CG Code"). The Company has adopted the Code Provisions
("Code Provisions") as stated in the New CG Code as the Corporate
Governance Code ("Code") of the Company in substitution for and to
the exclusion of the Former CG Code with effect from 1 April 2012. The
Board is committed to complying with the Code to the extent that the
directors of the Company ("Directors”) consider it is applicable to the
Company and practical.

The corporate governance principles of the Group emphasise an effective
Board, sound internal controls, appropriate independence policy, and
transparency and accountability to all shareholders of the Company.

During the relevant periods of the year under review, the Company fully
complied with the Code Provisions in the Former CG Code and New CG
Code, save for the following:

1. For the period from 1 May 2011 to 31 March 2012

Deviation from/modifications made to the Former CG Code:

- deviation from Code Provision A.2.1

- modifications made to Code Provision B.1.3 (from 1 May 2011 to
15 September 2011)

2. For the period from 1 April 2012 to 30 April 2012

Deviation from the New CG Code:
- deviation from Code Provision A.2.1
- deviation from Code Provision A.4.3

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
and the explanations on the deviations from the Code Provisions are
summarised as follows:

The Board

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company's business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for the leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group by directing and supervising the Group's affairs. All Directors
should make decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through
Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position to exercise
its powers in an informed manner, management provides monthly
management accounts and updates to the Directors who also have full
and timely access to all relevant information and may take independent
professional advice if necessary.
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Pursuant to the terms of reference and modus operandi of the Board
adopted with effect from 1 April 2012, the powers and authorities
reserved to the full Board include the following but are not limited to:

1. matters involving a conflict of interest for a substantial
shareholder and/or a Director;

2. making decisions on whether or not to declare, recommend or pay
dividend;
3. approving (i) the publication of preliminary announcement of the

profits or losses in respect of annual results or interim results and
(ii) the related financial statements and/or accounts;

4. approving any proposed change in the capital structure, including
any redemption of its securities listed on the Stock Exchange;

5. approving any decision to change the general nature of the
business of the Company;

6. approving any discloseable transaction, major transaction, very
substantial acquisition and disposal or connected transaction
within the meaning of Chapters 14 and 14A of the Listing Rules
on the Stock Exchange;

7. matters specifically set out in the Listing Rules which require
approval at a full Board meeting; and

8. any regulations or resolutions or restrictions that may be imposed
upon the committees by the Board from time to time.

The authorities reserved to the Remuneration Committee, Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee are more particularly discussed
below.

The Board has the full support of the chief executive officer and
senior management to discharge its responsibilities. Save for the
power reserved by the Board or other Board committees, the Executive
Committee currently comprising the chief executive officer and chief
financial officer is responsible for the day-to-day management and
operation functions of the Group.
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Corporate governance functions

Pursuant to the terms of reference and modus operandi of the Board,
the Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out below or it may delegate the responsibility to a committee
or committees:

1. to develop and review the Group's policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Group's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;

5. to review the Group's compliance with the corporate governance
code and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company; and

6. to review and monitor the Group's process of disclosure, including
assessing and verifying the accuracy and materiality of price-
sensitive information and determine the form and content of any
required disclosure.

During the year under review, the Board reviewed the Group's policies
and practices on corporate governance and adopted the New CG
Code. The Board also reviewed the current practices and procedures
of discharging the continuous disclosure obligations under the Listing
Rules and adopted the internal guidelines on issuing profit alert or profit
warning statement.

Directors' and officers' liabilities insurance

Appropriate insurance cover for directors’ and officers' liabilities
in respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers of the
Company and its subsidiaries arising out of corporate activities of the
Group has been arranged by the Company.

Composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making.
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The Board currently comprises six Directors in total, with two executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors. The Directors during the year under review and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
WANG Lu Yen (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Director
WONG Wai Ming

Independent non-executive Directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS

The Company currently has four Board committees. The table below
provides membership information of these committees on which each
Board member serves.

EECEAAEAANNESAER  BEMMATT
TFE UPITESER=ZUBIIFENTES -
UTARABBFEALEERN RSB IENE
=

BITES
T (EFERITHAEER)
BEF (ML)

FHUITES
=EH

BYFHTES

FHFF

HEDT

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS

ARRRERENBEEERES - TRIEHESE
EZERBHEELEL BETRAEENRAL -

Board Committee

ExEge Executive Audit Remuneration Nomination
Director Committee Committee Committee Committee
2= HITZEE BERZEE SMZzEE REZEE
WANG Lu Yen FE M ¢
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis BEF M
WONG Wai Ming EHZH
WANG Arthur Minshiang T M
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius WENT M
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS M
Notes: ffsE -
C Chairman of the relevant Board committees C EHEEZEENER
M Member of the relevant Board committees M EHESEZEEMKE

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s)) with
each other.
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Independent non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such
confirmation, the Company still considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgment to the
Board. Through active participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving on
Board committees, all independent non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Independent non-executive Director who has served for
more than nine years

Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang has served as an independent non-executive
Director for more than nine years. The further appointment of Mr. Wang
without the approval by way of passing a separate resolution of the
shareholders is regarded as a deviation from Code Provision A.4.3 of the
New CG Code effective on 1 April 2012.

To comply with this new Code Provision A.4.3, Mr. WANG Arthur
Minshiang will retire voluntarily at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

The Board is of the opinion that Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang remains
independent notwithstanding the length of his service and believes that
his valuable knowledge and experience in the Group's business and his
general business acumen continue to generate significant contribution
to the Board, the Company and the shareholders as a whole. The
Company's circular to be despatched to shareholders of the Company on
or about 27 July 2012 will contain the biographical information of Mr.
WANG Arthur Minshiang and the detailed reasons behind the Board's
recommendation of the continuing appointment of Mr. WANG Arthur
Minshiang as an independent non-executive Director.
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Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of Directors, monitoring the appointment and succession
planning of Directors and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors.

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the
selection process by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments
of the proposed candidates, the Company's needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency
may be engaged to assist in the recruitment and selection process when
necessary.

At a meeting of the Board held on 28 March 2012, the Board approved
the establishment of the Nomination Committee which comprises
three members, namely Mr. WANG Lu Yen (chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang and Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius
with effect from 1 April 2012.

The Company's bye-laws (“Bye-laws") provide that all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any
new Director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall be
subject to re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment.

The Bye-laws also allow for removal of a Director by an ordinary
resolution.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the Directors standing
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

The Company's circular to be despatched to shareholders of the

Company on or about 27 July 2012 will contain detailed information of
the Directors standing for re-election.
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Directors' service agreements and letters of appointment
Each of Mr. WANG Lu Yen and Mr. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis, being an
executive Director, has entered into a service agreement with the
Company with an initial term of three years from May 2002 and
September 2010 respectively, and has continued or will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party by not less than six months'
notice in writing.

Mr. WONG Wai Ming, a non-executive Director, has been appointed for
a term of two years under a letter of appointment from 5 July 2007 and
has continued thereafter until terminated by either party by serving at
least one month's notice in writing.

Each of the three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
WANG Arthur Minshiang, Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius and Mr. Jakob
Jacobus Koert TULLENERS, has first been appointed for a term of two
years under a letter of appointment. Such term has been renewed for a
further two years upon expiry. The appointments may be terminated by
the independent non-executive Directors by serving not less than one
month's notice in writing.

Changes to the emoluments of the Directors

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee having
considered the market comparable, roles and responsibilities,
performance and contributions of the Directors approved certain changes
to the emoluments of the executive Directors and recommended the
changes to the emoluments of the non-executive Directors which were
subsequently approved by the Board. None of the Directors participated
in the discussions relating to his own remuneration matters.

The changes made to the emoluments of the Directors are summarised
below:

1. WANG Lu Yen (executive Director, chairman, chief executive
officer, chairman of Executive Committee and Nomination
Committee, and member of Remuneration Committee)

- With effect from 1 May 2011, the service agreement has
been amended such that a residential apartment which
doubled the size of the apartment before the amendment
is provided to Mr. WANG Lu Yen. Details of the relevant
tenancy agreement with the annual rental of HK$2,400,000
(or US$308,483) are disclosed in the section “"Connected
Transactions" of the Report of the Directors of this annual
report.

- With effect from 1 May 2012, the base salary under the
service agreement has been adjusted from US$204,195 to
US$569,909 per annum. At the same time, the provident
fund has also been adjusted from US$10,210 to US$28,495
per annum.

- The Remuneration Committee has approved a discretionary
bonus payment of US$200,000 for the year under review.
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WONG Hing Lin, Dennis (executive Director, chief financial
officer, and member of Executive Committee)

- With effect from 1 May 2012, the base salary under the
service agreement has been adjusted from HK$3,000,000 (or
US$385,604) to HK$3,240,000 (or US$416,452) per annum.
At the same time, the provident fund has also been adjusted
from US$38,560 to US$41,645 per annum.

- The Remuneration Committee has approved a discretionary
bonus payment of US$100,000 for the year under review.

WONG Wai Ming (non-executive Director)

- With effect from 1 May 2012, the remuneration under the
letter of appointment has been adjusted from HK$259,200
(or US$33,316) to HK$285,120 (or US$36,648) per annum.

WANG Arthur Minshiang (independent non-executive
Director, chairman of Remuneration Committee, and member
of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee)

- With effect from 1 May 2012, the remuneration under the
letter of appointment has been adjusted from HK$259,200
(or US$33,316) to HK$342,144 (or US$43,977) per annum.

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius (independent non-executive Director,
chairman of Audit Committee, and member of Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee)

- With effect from 1 May 2012, the remuneration under the
letter of appointment has been adjusted from HK$259,200
(or US$33,316) to HK$427,680 (or US$54,972) per annum.

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS (independent non-executive
Director and member of Audit Committee)
- With effect from 1 May 2012, the remuneration under the

letter of appointment has been adjusted from HK$259,200
(or US$33,316) to HK$285,120 (or US$36,648) per annum.
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Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director has received comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment, so as
to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing
and professional development to Directors at the Company's expenses
whenever necessary.

The Company provides reqular updates and presentations on changes
and developments relating to the Group's business and the legislative
and regulatory environments in which the Group conducts its business
to the Directors.

The Directors are committed to complying with Code Provision A.6.5 of
the New CG Code which came into effect on 1 April 2012 on Directors'
training. All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and
provided a record of training they received during the year ended 30
April 2012 to the Company.

The individual training record of each Director received during the year
ended 30 April 2012 is summarised below:
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For the year ended 30 April 2012
BE_T-—FNA=THLFE

Name and Training provider
title of Directors Training received or source of training materials Time spent
(hour)
ESnAREH Frig 5 al RAE I E FF A A8 2 R Fit FA 5
(I BF)
WANG Lu Yen Speech on garment industry - supply-chain China National Garment Association 1
Chairman, management PERE RS
chief executive officer BRRETE - HEHEEZES
and executive Director Seminar on directors’ duties The Hong Kong Institute of Directors 2
B8 EHEERE e EEEEEY
i\I{#E; fTBBER Online training on listing rules amendments and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited 1
woEE compliance ERBMAERHMER AR
AR LTMRANERT RA R 2 ERET
Online training on corporate governance code The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited 1
and listing rules amendments ERMERHMBRAE
BRAGXERTRIR EMRRER] 2 ERE
WERBERAT —T-—FEH
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For the year ended 30 April 2012
BE_T-—FNA=TAHLEE

28

Name and Training provider

title of Directors Training received or source of training materials Time spent
(hour)

ESnAREHE A& 53l AT FI & FOE FI AR 2 R Fir P B 1
(/hBF)

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis Luncheon talks on business management Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) 2

Executive Director

and chief financial officer
BEF

WITESRIBEH

BERELER FEEE

Training on negotiation skills
BRApERT &
Luncheon talks on currency

BHEBITEBRE

Seminar on listing rules matters
FRALTRAEEZ RIS
Seminar on funding and treasury
BFRE kM Hng
Seminar on directors' duties
FREERE LM
Seminar on managing VAT

ERERREN e

Limited
BITRTT (B8) BRAA
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
ERESEEE
The International Chamber of Commerce -
Hong Kong, China
BREE - PEELR
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEEMARSMARDE

FinanceAsia

The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
ERESEEY

Ernst & Young

RXEETMEBA

WONG Wai Ming Online trainings on financial reporting standards The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Non-executive Director BB KHmEER 2w Accountants

=EH R VN
FHITES

WANG Arthur Minshiang
Independent non-executive

Self-study of new code and listing rules
amendments

Source: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

Director el FRANERT 2 B8 BRRR : BEEMAERIMAERAR
FHH B Self-study of guidance and FAQs Source: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
BUFRTES eI RERME, A Limited
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Online training on corporate governance rules
and compliance
BRGRERRAN AR EHREI
Self-study of IAS accounting developments
EReERlgtBRzAE
Self-study of guide on connected
transaction rules

BREEX SRR ZESIZEE

BRTR : BBMAERSMERAT
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BRBMERIMARRA

Source: PricewaterhouseCoopers

BRFR  BEROKES T EBAT

Source: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

BRFR - BEMERZMARAT



For the year ended 30 April 2012
BE_T-—FNA=THLFE

Name and Training provider
title of Directors Training received or source of training materials Time spent
(hour)
E=nAREH P 2 553 R AL I SR A A R 2 RO Fir PR B 1
(hBF)
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius Forums for independent non-executive directors KPMG 8.5
Independent non-executive and non-executive directors ESE ST EBAT
Director BB IFMTERIIFMTER ZWIE
AHEDT Seminar on listing rules amendments Davis Polk & Wardwell, Hong Kong Solicitors 1
BUFBITES BB LTRAET 25 & BB EANE M R A AP
Training on corporate governance and listing PricewaterhouseCoopers 2
rules update BERAEBEMELM
BRAGEERR ETARIEH 2 HI
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS Online training on corporate governance code The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited 1
Independent non-executive and listing rules amendments ERMARIMER AR
Director BRAGRERTRIR EMRRERT 2 ERE
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS  gpline training on listing rules amendments and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited 1
BUFTES ERBARSPHERAT

compliance

ARLIRANER] KA R R

Directors' attendance and time commitments

Regular Board meetings are held four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals primarily for reviewing and approving the financial
and operating performance, and considering and approving the overall
strategies, policies and budgets of the Group.

During the year ended 30 April 2012, the Board met six times mainly for
considering and approving the audited final results for the year ended 30
April 2011, unaudited results for the three months ended 31 July 2011, a
continuing connected transaction, unaudited interim results for the six
months ended 31 October 2011, corporate governance matters, unaudited
results for the nine months ended 31 January 2012 and budget of the
Group for the year ending 30 April 2013. At these board meetings, the
Board also reviewed and discussed the Group's business updates and
strategies.
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The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of
the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination

Comm

ittee and annual general meeting during the year ended 30 April

2012 is set out below:

BEEBER %zi_i—iimﬂz-i-ﬁﬂziﬁﬁ’]%
52 BERZBE FHZEEKERZEES
s%m@&@t;mm&r%%mw-

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEE/EERY
Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee general
Name of Directors EEpE Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting meeting
(Note 1)
Exe #nZE®g FHWzEEE REZES B3R
a3 23 23 a3 BERE
(BtsEn)
Executive Directors HTES
WANG Lu Yen (Note 2) F%E (M) 6/6 ik 11 0/0 11
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis (Note 3) ~ =E4 (FfiF3) 6/6 202 1)1 N/A & 0
Non-executive Director FHTES
WONG Wai Ming &R 66 N/A TEH N/A iE NJA RiE R o1
Independent non-executive BUFHTER
Directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang (Note 4) ~ F 813 (Fftst4) 6/6 202 0N 0/o o1
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius (Note 5) HET (MEs) 6/6 202 0N 0/o 11
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS ~ Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS 5/6 202 N/A i N/A i 0/1
Number of meetings held ENBITRY 6 2 1 0 1
Notes: B3

Nomination Committee of the Board was established on 1 April 2012.

Mr. WANG Lu Yen was appointed member and chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Board with effect from 1 April 2012. He ceased to act as member
and chairman of the Investment Committee of the Board following the dissolution of
the Investment Committee of the Board on 16 September 2011.

Mr. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis ceased to act as member of the Investment Committee of
the Board following the dissolution of the Investment Committee of the Board on 16
September 2011.

Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang was appointed member of the Nomination Committee of
the Board with effect from 1 April 2012.

Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius was appointed member of the Nomination Committee of
the Board with effect from 1 April 2012.

The Directors are not members of the committees at the relevant time but attended
the meetings by invitation.
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In place of physical meetings, the Board and Board committees also
circulate written resolutions for approval by the relevant members of
the Board and Board committees except for matters where a substantial
shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest which the Board has
determined to be material in compliance with Code Provision A.1.7.

The Board having considered the attendance records of the Directors and
the confirmation provided by each Director is satisfied that each Director
spends sufficient time performing his responsibilities.

Practices and conduct of meetings
Meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are made available
to Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least
14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are generally sent to all Directors at least three days before
each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised
of the latest developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each Director
also have separate and independent access to the senior management
and company secretary whenever necessary.

The chief executive officer, chief financial officer (who heads a team
of professional staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function) and company secretary of the Company attend all
regular Board meetings and when necessary, other Board and committee
meetings to advise on business developments, financial and accounting
matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and other major
aspects of the Company.

The company secretary is responsible for taking and keeping minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft and final versions
of minutes of Board meetings are normally sent to Directors for their
comments and records respectively, in both cases within a reasonable
time after each meeting is held.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Bye-laws also contain provisions requiring Directors to
abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.
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Chairman and chief executive officer

Mr. WANG Lu Yen, the chairman of the Company, is also the chief
executive officer of the Company. Such practice deviates from Code
Provision A.2.1 of the Former CG Code and the New CG Code which
stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

In view of Mr. WANG Lu Yen's extensive experience in the industry and
in-depth knowledge of the Group's operation and business, the Board
believes that Mr. Wang is instrumental in formulating and implementing
the Group's strategies. The Board expects that the Group will benefit
from a unified chairman and chief executive officer position that
provides clarity of leadership and allows efficient decision-making in
strategic matters as well as the Group's day-to-day business. However,
as the corporate needs of the Group may change from time to time,
the Board will review regularly the board composition and division of
responsibilities to ensure balance of power and corporate governance
practices appropriate for the size and structure of the Group's business.

The responsibilities of the chairman and the chief executive officer are
clearly defined and set out in writing, details of which are stated below.

The chairman's principal role is to provide leadership for the Board on
corporate and strategic planning, ensure proper proceedings of the
Board and encourage all Directors to have active contributions to the
Board's affairs.

Supported by the other executive Director and management, the chief
executive officer's principal role is to manage and operate the Group's
day-to-day business, including the implementation of major strategies
and initiatives adopted by the Board.

Board committees

The Company currently have four committees, namely, the Executive
Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs.

During the year under review, (i) pursuant to the New CG Code, the
Board established the Nomination Committee and (ii) having considered
the Board size and the composition of Board committees as explained
below, the Board dissolved the Investment Committee.

Terms of reference of all Board committees are available on the Stock
Exchange's website and the Company's website at www.linmark.com.
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Current structure of the Board EECREHLRE

Board of Directors
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The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge ~ZEFZEGABAENERBITHERBE - WER
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professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's R BRBAREXENM -
expenses.

WEEEERAR —T-—&F% | 33



34

Corporate Governance Report
NRIEBWRE

Executive Committee
The Executive Committee consists of all the executive Directors as
follows:

WANG Lu Yen (chairman of the committee)
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management and operation
functions of the Group to the Executive Committee save to the extent
that certain powers and authorities are reserved to the full Board or
the other Board committees. Since the dissolution of the Investment
Committee on 16 September 2011, the functions of the Investment
Committee have been incorporated into the terms of reference of the
Executive Committee. As a result, the Executive Committee is also
responsible for reviewing or recommending to the Board the investment
transactions of the Group and has the power to approve transactions
that would not constitute notifiable transactions or capital market
activities.

With effect from 1 April 2012, the Company further amended the terms
of reference of the Executive Committee to make them in line with the
proceedings of other committees of the Board.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-executive Directors
as follows:

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius (chairman of the committee)
WANG Arthur Minshiang
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS

None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company's existing external auditors.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company's
annual reports and accounts, interim reports and results announcements
and to provide advice and comments thereon to the Directors. The
members meet regularly with the internal auditor, external auditors
and the Company's senior management for the review and supervision
of the Company's financial reporting and internal control procedures.
The Audit Committee is also responsible for monitoring integrity of the
financial statements of the Company and the Company's annual reports
and accounts and interim reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them.
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With effect from 1 April 2012, the Company amended the terms of
reference of the Audit Committee to make them correspond with the
New CG Code.

As required by Code Provision C.3.7 of the New CG Code, details of
arrangements for employees to raise concerns about improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control and other matters have been
included in the employees' handbook since 1 April 2012.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two meetings
to:

(@)  review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the chief financial officer
(who heads a team of professional staff responsible for the
accounting and financial reporting function), internal auditor or
external auditors before submission to the Board;

(b)  review the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors
proposed by management; and

(c)  review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the terms and conditions of
connected transactions and continuing connected transactions of the
Company which took place during the year under review.

The Company's annual results for the year ended 30 April 2012 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection and appointment of the external auditors during the
year under review.
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Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, the majority of
which are independent non-executive Directors, as follows:

WANG Arthur Minshiang (chairman of the committee)
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius
WANG Lu Yen

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the Company's policy
and structure for all the remuneration packages of the Directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing formal and transparent procedures for developing
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or
any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions. The Remuneration Committee shall consult
the chairman andfor the chief executive officer of the Company about
their recommendations on remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee were in
compliance with the Code Provisions except that Code Provisions B.1.3(a)
and B.1.3(b) of the Former CG Code have been combined and modified
such that the Remuneration Committee had the power to do such things
and to approve all matters in relation to compensation regarding all the
Directors and senior management of the Group in accordance with the
terms and conditions of their respective agreement/contract with the
Company, or as the case may be, the relevant subsidiary of the Company.
In addition, the Remuneration Committee was also delegated with the
authority to exercise all the powers of the Board in relation to the share
option scheme of the Company.

On 16 September 2011, the Board amended the terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee so that there would be no more deviation
in such terms of reference from the Code Provisions of the Former
CG Code. Following this change, the Board as a whole is responsible
for determining the remuneration of non-executive Directors whereas
the Remuneration Committee would continue to have the authority
to approve the remuneration of the executive Directors and the senior
management of the Group as well as share options related matters.
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With effect from 1 April 2012, the Company further amended the terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee to make them correspond
with the New CG Code and adopted Code Provision B.1.2(c)(i) out of the
two models suggested by the New CG Code. As a result of the adoption
of Code Provision B.1.2(c)(i), the Board as a whole is responsible for
determining the remuneration of non-executive Directors whereas the
Remuneration Committee has the authority to approve the remuneration
of the individual executive Directors and the senior management of the
Group as well as share options related matters.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held
one meeting to review and approve the proposed adjustment to the
remuneration of executive Directors and the proposed performance
bonus to the executive Directors and to consider and recommend the
proposed changes to the remuneration packages of non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors).

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 1 April 2012 with terms
of reference in line with Code Provision A.5.1 of the New CG Code which
came into effect on 1 April 2012. The Nomination Committee comprises
three members, the majority of which are independent non-executive
Directors, as follows:

WANG Lu Yen (chairman of the committee)
WANG Arthur Minshiang
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

(a)  review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company's corporate strategy;

(b) identify individual suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorship;

(c) assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors,
having regard to the requirements of the Listing Rules;

(d)  ensure that no independent non-executive Director or any of his/
her associates is involved in assessing his/her own independence;
and

(e) make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the chairman and the chief executive.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee did not hold
any meeting.
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Investment Committee

The Investment Committee was formed on 21 April 2006 notwithstanding
there was no such requirement under the Listing Rules or its
recommended best practices. Having considered the reduced Board size
and the identical composition of the Executive Committee and Investment
Committee, the Board has dissolved the Investment Committee on 16
September 2011, and the functions of the Investment Committee has
merged with that of the Executive Committee.

Company secretary

Ms. CHEUNG Hoi Yin, Brenda has been the company secretary since the
Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in 2002.
She is an employee of a fellow subsidiary of the Company and has day-
to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs.

As the company secretary, Ms. Cheung supports the Board by ensuring
good information flow within the Board and that Board policy and
procedures are followed. She is responsible for advising the Board
through the chairman and chief executive officer on governance matters
and facilitates induction and professional development of the Directors.

The appointment and dismissal of the company secretary are subject to
the Board approval in accordance with the Bye-laws. Whilst the company
secretary reports to the chairman and the chief executive officer on
the Group's company secretarial and corporate governance matters, all
members of the Board have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary.

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules which came into effect on 1
January 2012, the company secretary must take no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training in each financial year staggered according
to the date of appointment. In view of her date of appointment, Ms.
Cheung being the company secretary of the Company is required to take
such professional training for the financial year commencing on 1 May
2013.

Business objectives and strategies

Through harnessing the expertise and creativity of all our people, the
Company's objectives are to preserve and grow its position as a key
player in global supply chain management, while constantly striving to
increase the returns of the Company's shareholders.

The Company is committed to providing its customers the right quality

products and cost effective services in apparel and hardgoods at the
right time.
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The Company looks for improving the Group's long term financial
performance and avoids taking undue risks to make short term gains
at the expense of long term objectives. The current business strategy is
disclosed in the section "Prospects” of the Management Discussion and
Analysis of this annual report.

Internal controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining the system of internal controls
of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. During the year ended
30 April 2012, the Board conducted an annual review of the Group's
internal control system, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions. The Board assessed the
effectiveness of internal control by considering reviews performed by
the Audit Committee and both internal and external auditors. The annual
review also considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff in respect of the Group's accounting and financial
reporting function.

During the year, as delegated by the Board and Audit Committee,
internal auditor performed internal control reviews on the Group's risk
areas based on annual assessment of risk profile. Key audit findings and
recommendations were reviewed by the Audit Committee. Management
will continue to follow up actions agreed upon in response to audit
recommendations.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers ("Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 30 April 2012.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (“Employees Written Guidelines") for
securities transactions by relevant employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished price-sensitive information in relation to the
Company and its securities.

No incident of non-compliance with the Employees Written Guidelines
by the relevant employees was noted by the Company.
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Responsibilities in respect of the financial
statements

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other publications of the Company and
other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 April 2012.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditors' Report" contained in this annual report.

Auditors' remuneration

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in
respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 30
April 2012 amounted to approximately US$277,000 and US$19,000
respectively. The non-audit services were mainly related to tax services.

Shareholders' rights
The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. The rights of the
members (or shareholders) of the Company (“shareholders”) are set out
in, amongst other things, the Bye-laws and the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (“Companies Act").

Convening special general meeting on requisition

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company or
at the registered office of the Company, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies
Act. Under bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provision of
Section 74(3) of the Companies Act.

The written requisition requiring a special general meeting to be called
can be sent to the head office and principal place of business of the
Company as set out in the Corporate Information section of this annual
report for the attention of the company secretary.

Proposing resolution at general meeting

Shareholders may by written requisition request for including a
resolution relating to matters in a general meeting by following the
requirements and procedures as set out in Sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act.
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Subject to the provisions of the above-mentioned sections of the
Companies Act, on the written requisition of members representing not
less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights or 100 members, at the
expense of the requisitionists unless the Company otherwise resolves,
the Company shall give shareholders of the Company notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting and a relevant statement.

Procedures for nomination of Directors for election

Under bye-law 86(1) of the Bye-laws, shareholders are entitled to elect
any person to be a Director at the annual general meeting in accordance
with bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws or at any special general meeting by
following the requirement set out in bye-law 88 of the Bye-laws. Details
of the procedures for nomination of Directors for election are available
on the Company's website at www.linmark.com.

Notice of general meetings and “bundling” resolutions

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.3, the Company will arrange for the
notice to shareholders to be sent for annual general meetings at least 20
clear business days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear
business days for all other general meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual Directors. Where
bundling the resolutions cannot be avoided, the Company shall explain
the reasons and material implications in the notice of the meeting.

Voting by poll
The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at general meetings are contained in the Bye-laws.

In accordance with Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all resolutions put
to vote at general meetings of the Company are taken by way of poll
except where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted
on by a show of hands.

Details of the poll voting procedures will be set out in the circular sent
to shareholders prior to each meeting. The chairman of a meeting shall
ensure that an explanation is provided of the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll and answer any questions from shareholders on voting
by poll.

After each general meeting, the poll results will be published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company in the manner
prescribed under Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders' communication policy

The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and
in particular, use annual general meetings or other general meetings
to communicate with them and encourage their participation. The
Company shall also make available all the disclosures submitted to the
Stock Exchange and its corporate communications and other corporate
publications on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The Board will regularly review this policy to ensure its effectiveness to
suit the needs of the Company and to comply with the relevant rules
and corporate governance code.

Conduct of general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication
between the shareholders and the Board. Shareholders are encouraged
to participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and
vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to attend the
meetings.

The chairman of the Board as well as chairman of the Board committees
or in their absence, other members of the respective committees and the
external auditors are available to answer questions at the annual general
meetings.

Shareholders' enquiries

Shareholders can send their enquiries about shareholdings, share
transfer, registration and payment of dividend to the Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office. Other shareholders' enquiries can
be directed to the head office and principal place of business of the
Company as set out in the Corporate Information section of this annual
report for the attention of the chief financial officer or the company
secretary.

Details of the shareholder' rights and communication policy are also
available on the Company's website at www.linmark.com.

Investor relations

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular
dialogue with institutional investors to keep them abreast of the
Company's developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner.

Besides, as to promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at www.linmark.com, where information and updates
on the Company's business developments and operations, list of directors
and their role and function, constitutional documents, terms of reference
of the Board and its committees, procedures for nomination of directors
for election, shareholders' rights and communication policy, corporate
governance practices, announcements, circulars and reports released to
the Stock Exchange and other information are posted. Information on
the Company's website will be updated from time to time.

There was no significant change in the Company's constitutional
documents during the year ended 30 April 2012.

Hong Kong, 13 July 2012
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 30 April 2012.

Principal activities
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year under review by
business and geographical segments as well as information about major
customers is set out in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Results and appropriations
The results of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2012 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 61.

An interim dividend of 0.88 HK cent per ordinary share, totalling
approximately US$773,000, was declared and paid to shareholders
during the year under review.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 0.50 HK
cent per ordinary share in respect of the year ended 30 April 2012,
totalling approximately US$439,000. Subject to shareholders' approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the
final dividend will be paid in cash on or about 17 September 2012 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 4 September 2012.

Ultimate holding company

During the year under review, the Directors regard Roly International as
a controlling shareholder of the Company and Megastar Holdings Limited
("Megastar") as the ultimate holding company of the Company. The
ultimate controlling party of the Group is Mr. WANG Lu Yen, a Director.

As at 30 April 2012, Roly International, directly and indirectly, held
approximately 69.84% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment
during the year under review are set out in Note 13 to the financial
statements.
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Share capital
Details of the share capital of the Company during the year under review
are set out in Note 26 to the financial statements.

Reserves
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year under review are set out in Note 28 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves

As at 30 April 2012, distributable reserves of the Company consisted of
the aggregate of contributed surplus and retained earnings, amounted to
US$15,541,000 (2011: US$16,236,000).

Under the Companies Act (as amended), the contributed surplus shall not
be distributed to the shareholders if there are reasonable grounds for
believing that:

(1) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the Company's assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium account.

Share options and share option schemes

A share option scheme ("2002 Share Option Scheme") was adopted
by the Company pursuant to a resolution of the then sole shareholder
passed on 22 April 2002 for the primary purpose of providing incentives
or rewards to eligible persons for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group. The Company terminated the 2002 Share
Option Scheme and adopted a new share option scheme (“2011 Share
Option Scheme") pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company on 29 August 2011. The 2011
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years up to
2021, during which the Board or a committee thereof may grant options
to eligible persons to subscribe for shares in the Company. No option
has been granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme. The outstanding
options granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme remain exercisable
according to the terms of the grants of the options.
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Share options and share option schemes (continued)
Details of the 2011 Share Option Scheme are as follows:

1.

Eligible persons
The eligible persons under the 2011 Share Option Scheme include:

(i) any Director or proposed Director (whether executive or
non-executive, including any independent non-executive
Director), employee or proposed employee (whether full
time or part time) of, or any individual for the time being
seconded to work for, any member of the Group or any
controlling shareholder of the Company or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder of the Company; or

(i) any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any controlling shareholder of the Company or
any company controlled by a controlling shareholder of the
Company; or

(iii)  any business partner, agent, consultant or representative of,
or any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional or other services to, or any supplier of goods or
services to, or any customer of, any member of the Group or
any controlling shareholder of the Company or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder of the Company.

Maximum number of shares

The initial total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date
of approval of the 2011 Share Option Scheme (i.e. 68,306,927
shares).

Subject to the approval by the Company's shareholders, the
aggregate number of the Company's shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30%
of the Company's shares in issue from time to time. Options
granted to the independent non-executive Directors or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective associates
in excess of 0.1% of the Company's shares in issue and with an
aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million resulting in the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
already granted and to be granted to such person under the 2011
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding)
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of grant
of such option must be approved in advance by the Company's
shareholders.
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Share options and share option schemes (continued)
3.  Maximum entitlement for each eligible person

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
to any eligible persons (including those cancelled, exercised and
outstanding options), in any 12-month period up to the date of
the latest grant shall not exceed 1% of the Company's shares in
issue. Any further grant of options in excess of such limit must
be separately approved by the Company's shareholders in general

meeting.

4. Acceptance and payment on acceptance

Offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. No
consideration is required to be paid by the grantee of an option
to the Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an
option. Options may be exercised at any time commencing on the
date as the Board may determine and ending on such date as the
Board may determine but shall not exceed 10 years from the date
of grant (which is the date of offer of grant if the offer for the
grant of the option is accepted). The exercise price is determined
by the Board, and will not be less than the higher of the closing
price of the Company's shares on the date of offer of grant and
the average closing price of the shares for the five business days

immediately preceding the date of offer of grant.

5. Remaining life of the 2011 Share Option Scheme

Subject to the earlier termination of the 2011 Share Option
Scheme in accordance with the rules governing the 2011 Share
Option Scheme, the 2011 Share Option Scheme will expire on 29

August 2021.
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Share options and share option schemes (continued) BRERBRESTS @

Movements of the options to subscribe for shares of the Company RAMBFEARE —TT _FEREAIIRT
granted to the Directors and employees (Note ii) under the 2002 Share ~ == RES (M) AIREBARRQ ARG < BikE
Option Scheme during the year under review were as follows: BEIEAMAT

Options granted by the Company
Number of underlying shares of the Company

ARAREZBRERB AL ARGHAE

Outstanding Outstanding Exercise
as at as at price
1 May 2011 Granted Cancelled Lapsed 30 April 2012 per share Date of grant Exercise period
(HKS)
RZB--% RZB-Z§
iA-A MA=1H
BA{TE BRH B BAX WATE SROEE RHAH AR
(B
Directors £
WANG Lu Yen I8 500,000 - - - 500,000 0.700 25/08/2009 25/08/2010-24/08/2015
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis EEE 3,282,500 - - - 3,282,500 0830 24/08/2007 24/08/2008-23/08/2013
500,000 - - - 500,000 0.700 25/08/2009 25/08/2010-24/08/2015
3,782,500 - - - 3,782,500
INONG Wai Ming HEH 500,000 - - - 500,000 0.700 25/08/2009 25/08/2010-24/08/2015
WANG Arthur Minshiang TaE 312,500 - - - 312,500 0.700 25/08/2009 25/08/2010-24/08/2015
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius HET 625,000 - - - 625,000 0830 24/08/2007 24/08/2008-23/08/2013
Jakob Jacobus Koert Jakob Jacobus Koert
TULLENERS TULLENERS 312,500 - - - 312,500 0.700 25/08/2009 25/08/2010-24/08/2015
Continuous contract employees  HEAHES 9,759,000 - - - 9,759,000 0830 24/08/2007 24/08/2008-23/08/2013
(Note i) (B3i)
1,883,500 - - (375,000 1,508,500 0.700 25/08/2009 25/08/2010-24/08/2015
11,642,500 - - (375,000) 11,267,500
Total B3 17,675,000 - - (375,000) 17,300,000

WEEMERAT —T——FF% @ 47



48

Report of the Directors

-

eHEE

Share options and share option schemes (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

The closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheet immediately before the dates on which the outstanding options
were granted were as follows:

BRERERESTSE (o)

Wi

(i)

REZHRTEBBRER D BHA  BBIMEHZE
BT ERAR - ARFRRGZEHENT

Closing price per share immediately

Date of grant it ci=h before the date of grant
SERHAHIZERETE

HK$

BT

23 August 2007 —EZTLFNAZ=+=H 0.860
24 August 2009 “ZETNFNAZF+TEA 0.670

Employees include employees of the Group and of the subsidiaries of Roly
International (other than the Directors) working under employment contracts with
the Group or subsidiaries of Roly International which are regarded as "continuous
contracts” for the purpose of the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57, Laws of Hong
Kong).

The Company has used the Black-Scholes Model for estimating the fair value of
options granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme. The Black-Scholes Model is
one of the commonly used models to estimate the fair value of an option which can
be exercised before the expiry of the option period. The assumptions used in the
calculation are:

(a) Risk-free interest rate - the yield of 4-year Exchange Fund Notes on the date
of grant
(b) Expected volatility of share price - annualised volatility for one year

immediately preceding the date of grant
(o) Expected life of share options - 3.5-4.5 years
(d) Expected dividend paid out rate - 40%

The amount charged to in the income statement for the year ended 30 April 2012 was
approximately US$11,000 (2011: US$58,000).

No option was granted during the year under review/during the corresponding period
last year.

The calculation of the fair value of options using the Black-Scholes Model is based on
various assumptions and is only an estimate. It is possible that the financial benefit
accruing to the option holders may be substantially different from the value of
options calculated.
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Directors
The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors
WANG Lu Yen
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis

Non-executive Director
WONG Wai Ming

Independent non-executive Directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS

Mr. WANG Lu Yen and Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius, in accordance with
bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Bye-laws, will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang, who has served the Company for more
than nine years as an independent non-executive Director, will retire
voluntarily at the forthcoming annual general meeting and offer himself
for re-election for the purpose of complying with Code Provision A.4.3
of the New CG Code.

Directors' service contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting have a service contract with the
Group which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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ExeRsE

Directors' interests in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations

As at 30 April 2012, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.
571, Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(a) Interests and short positions in the shares of the
Company and its associated corporations

EERARAREABEE RS - 8
ERORESD 2D

R-ZE-——FMOA=1H " ARAZEERITHK
RENA DR S EMARRAE (ERREBE
BT EE 5 R EGRD ([#5RBERM )
EXVED) 2Bty ~ MBI RESFTEEALTA
ARARIEES RS RO FE35215FEZERL
MR RRE X (WFE) REFETRIA
MERNRR LBz IARIT

(a) REQFAREMBEBEZE 2R P28
BwRAR

Company/Name of

Number and class

Percentage
shareholding in
the same class
of securities as

associated corporations Name of Directors Capacity of securities at 30 April 2012
(Note 1)

R=-B—-F

mA=+H

TERERIE 2

AQTFHEEECEE EBEIEES &4 HEHERER ZREB DL
(BftE1)

Company WANG Lu Yen Beneficial owner 620,000 0.09%
PIN/N F 1A EmBEA ordinary shares
(L

Company WANG Lu Yen Interest of controlled 477,035,619 69.849%
¥iN/NE] T4 corporations ordinary shares
_ (Note 2) Rl
SR 3 )

(HtEE2)

Company WONG Hing Lin, Dennis  Beneficial owner 800,000 0.12%
¥iIN/NE] HEF BEalEA A ordinary shares
iR
(L)

Company WANG Arthur Beneficial owner 260,000 0.04%
PiN/NC] Minshiang EmfEAA ordinary shares
T B R
(L)

Company WONG Wai Ming Beneficial owner 100,000 0.01%
PIN/NC]| e EmfAA ordinary shares
E B
(0

Megastar WANG Lu Yen Beneficial owner 1 ordinary share 100%
(Note 2) e BishE A BB
(Bi&F2) (L
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Directors'

interests in shares, underlying shares

and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (continued)

Interests and short positions in the shares of the
Company and its associated corporations (continued)

(a)

(b)

Notes:

(1)
(2)

The letter "L" represents the Director's interests in the shares.

As at 30 April 2012, (i) RGS Holdings Limited ("RGS"), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Roly International, owned 431,220,000 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 63.13% of the issued share capital of the
Company; and (i) Roly International owned 45,815,619 shares of the
Company, representing approximately 6.71% of the issued share capital of the
Company. By virtue of the relationship between Mr. WANG Lu Yen and Roly
International as stated in Note (2) of Section (a) to the paragraph headed
"Substantial shareholders and other persons who are required to disclose
their interests pursuant to Part XV of the SFO" below, Mr. WANG Lu Yen was
deemed, by virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, to be interested
in all the shares of the Company in which Roly International and RGS were
interested.

Interests and short positions in the underlying shares

§$%$QE§EEMEHZ&E~H

BRHRES

2R (®)

(a) J?"ZIK’D\E&EHWEZH’Q@QJZE

Wi

(1)
(2)

RE (@)

L] s E SRR 2 s -

RZTE——FWA=Z1+TH (12REEZ2
& [ff & 2 TIRGS Holdings Limited ([RGS]) ¥ A&
431,220,000l R A BIRE D+ (EANA BB BITIRAR

#963.130% & K (i) 2 Bk B PR 7 545,815,619/ A A
AR - AEARAR B BITRALE71% R T

X[ EEERRRIRIEE S KBS DI EXVERA K
Bmz KAL) —BRE QMNP
ITHREASEERPEBRRZANEE  REESFR
HEGRPIEXVERZ G ERBEERRAES
2B RRCSATHIA 2 A RN A R 2 4k

(b) REDFARHEMBEEEZEBERD S

of the Company and its associated corporations ZEBERAR
Number of underlying
Company/Name of shares comprised in
associated corporations Name of Directors Capacity the options
(Notes 1 and 2)
BREMS 2
AAT/EBEEZ S8 EERE P2 BB E
(Mt3E1%2)
Company WANG Lu Yen Beneficial owner 500,000 (L)
ZAN/NG| F1%E EnlEEA
Company WONG Hing Lin, Dennis Beneficial owner 3,782,500 (L)
VNN mEF BB A
Company WONG Wai Ming Beneficial owner 500,000 (L)
ZA/NS] E il EmEEA
Company WANG Arthur Minshiang Beneficial owner 312,500 (L)
ZAN/NS) F EmlAA
Company TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius Beneficial owner 625,000 (L)
ZA/NS] HZEDT EmBA
Company Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS Beneficial owner 312,500 (L)
A F] EnEAA
Notes: B sE
(1) The letter "L" represents the Director's interests in the shares. (1) [L] THBEE R R R 2 ek o
(2) Details of the above underlying shares are set out in the paragraph headed (2) ERARBRD ZFERR [EEBERNHRES

"Directors' rights to acquire shares or debentures".

ZHER] B e
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Directors' interests in shares, underlying shares

and debentures of the Company and its associated

corporations (continued)

(c) Interests and short positions in the debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations
As at 30 April 2012, none of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company had interests or short positions in the debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors' rights to acquire shares or debentures
Movements of the options granted by the Company to the Directors
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the year under review
were set out in the paragraph headed "Share options and share option
schemes" above.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year under review was
the Company, or any of its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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Substantial shareholders and other persons who

are required to disclose their interests pursuant to ZAHREEZZHMAL

Part XV of the SFO

(a) Substantial shareholders of the Company (a) XRABRZEERR

As at 30 April 2012, the following shareholders (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company whose interests
and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company are set out above) had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the

FTERRRREEZRPERHFEXVE

W-ZZE——FWA=+H "  FHERE(ER
KRRz REERD 2 EZRARE
BN EXZARRARESR RITBBERIN B
ARz REERG PR ALAR
NEMRIEFE S KB KOIENBRFEZE

register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of sz EmSORE
the SFO:
Approximate
Number of percentage of

shares of the

interests as at

Name of substantial shareholders Capacity Company held 30 April 2012
(Note 1)
R-Z——F
BEAEAQTH MA=+HZ
FTERRER B4 RGOEE EREBNBE
(M5E1)
RGS Beneficial owner 431,220,000 (L) 63.13%
EmlEA
Roly International Beneficial owner 45,815,619 (L) 6.71%
2 BB EmlEEA
Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 2) 431,220,000 (L) 63.13%
RiEHEE c am (FiE2)
RI Holdings Bermuda Limited Interest of controlled
corporations (Note 2) 477,035,619 (L) 69.84%
R EE Ew (Fe2)
RI Investment Holdings Bermuda Limited Interest of controlled
corporations (Note 2) 477,035,619 (L) 69.84%
RiEHEE w (FiE2)
MELEMERAT —T—_FFR
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Substantial shareholders and other persons who
are required to disclose their interests pursuant to

Part XV of the SFO (continued)
(a) Substantial shareholders of the Company (continued)

FERRRBEZHFRPEFRHIEXVER
BAREEZCHMAL )

(a)

ARBZEERR (8)

Approximate
percentage of
interests as at

Number of
shares of the

Name of substantial shareholders Capacity Company held 30 April 2012
(Note 1)
R-B—ZF
BEXATE B=tH2
TERRERE &4 RGEE EaBiNEs L
(M5E1)
Megastar Interest of controlled
corporations (Note 2) 477,035,619 (L) 69.84%
REGIER 2w (HEE2)
Rl Investment Holdings, Ltd. Interest of controlled
corporations (Note 2) 477,035,619 (L) 69.84%
REGIER 2w (HEE2)
One Principle Development Limited Interest of controlled
corporations (Note 2) 477,035,619 (L) 69.84%
REGIER 2w (HEE2)
CHIM Pui Chung Interest of controlled
EER corporations (Note 2) 477,035,619 (L) 69.84%
TGRS (FiEE2)
Notes: BiaE -
(1) The letter “L" represents the entity's interests in the shares. m [L] ThEE R R G 2 s o
(2) As at 30 April 2012, (i) RGS, a wholly owned subsidiary of Roly International, (2) RZE—ZFMA=+H " (1ZEEBRZZ2EH

owned 431,220,000 shares of the Company, representing approximately
63.13% of the issued share capital of the Company; and (ii) Roly International
owned 45,815,619 shares of the Company, representing approximately 6.71%
of the issued share capital of the Company. Roly International is wholly
owned by Rl Holdings Bermuda Limited. Rl Holdings Bermuda Limited is held
by Rl Investment Holdings Bermuda Limited as to 92.7% and by Megastar
as to 0.73%. Rl Investment Holdings Bermuda Limited is held by each of Rl
Investment Holdings, Ltd. and Megastar as to 45.22% and 54.78% respectively.
Rl Investment Holdings, Ltd. is wholly owned by One Principle Development
Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. CHIM Pui Chung. Megastar is wholly
owned by Mr. WANG Lu Yen. Mr. WANG Lu Yen, a Director, is also a director of
RGS, Roly International, Rl Holdings Bermuda Limited, Rl Investment Holdings
Bermuda Limited and Megastar.

Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2012

J& A RIRGSHE 5 431,220,000/% & X BIAR 5 » {5 2K
N F BT AN 40631300 ¢ (i) 2 BB A
45815619 AN A B - (E AR B D HITHEA
#76.71% ° 2 BIFE A RI Holdings Bermuda Limited
%2 & ¥ A ° Rl Holdings Bermuda Limited% 5!l i
Rl Investment Holdings Bermuda Limited &2 Megastar
%5 H92.7%20.73%7E = © Rl Investment Holdings
Bermuda Limited Bl #RI Investment Holdings, Ltd.
FMegastarf 5 45.2200 % 54.78%0%E x © Rl Investment
Holdings, Ltd.E30ne Principle Development Limited
TEER MERER—FABBIALEZEHR
BZAF) > Megastar A TR B L E2EHHR - &
E T B ELETARGS ~ 2 EEIEE - Rl Holdings
Bermuda Limited * Rl Investment Holdings Bermuda
Limited & Megastar 2 & = °



Substantial shareholders and other persons who

are required to disclose their interests pursuant to

Part XV of the SFO (continued)

(b) Other persons who are required to disclose their
interests pursuant to Part XV of the SFO
Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed "Directors' interests
in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations” and paragraph (a) above, as at 30
April 2012, no other person had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which are required
to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO.

Related party transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken
during the year under review are disclosed in Note 33 to the financial
statements. Save as disclosed below, these related party transactions
fall under the definition of a connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction, but are exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders' approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Connected transactions

The following transactions between certain connected persons (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and the Company constitute continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules and are subject to the
announcement, reporting and annual review requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The transactions have been entered into and
are ongoing for which relevant announcements had been made by the
Company in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

1. Continuing connected transaction relating to
Linmark (HK) Limited
On 15 April 2011, Linmark (HK) Limited entered into a tenancy
agreement (“Tenancy Agreement”) with Sky Fame Group Limited
("Sky Fame") whereby Sky Fame agreed to lease to Linmark (HK)
Limited Flat 85 on 9/F. and Flat 85 on 10/F, Tower 15, Hong Kong
Parkview and Carpark Space Nos. 1026 and 1040 of Entrance 1
(Level 6), 88 Tai Tam Reservoir Road, Hong Kong (“Premises”) on
a fully-furnished basis for a term of 24 months commencing on 1
May 2011, provided that both Linmark (HK) Limited and Sky Fame
have an option to terminate the Tenancy Agreement by giving two
months' notice to the other party in writing. The monthly rent
(exclusive of rates and government rent) payable by Linmark (HK)
Limited to Sky Fame under the Tenancy Agreement is HK$200,000.
The Premises are used as the staff quarters of Mr. WANG Lu Yen, a
Director.
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m2HMAL
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BB E AN A TRAR R Z iy R AR RE B
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Connected transactions (continued)

1. Continuing connected transaction relating to
Linmark (HK) Limited (continued)
The entire issued share capital of Sky Fame is owned as to 50%
by Mr. WANG Lu Yen, an executive Director, the chairman and the
chief executive officer of the Company and a director of Sky Fame,
and as to 50% by his spouse. Accordingly, Sky Fame is an associate
of Mr. Wang and a connected person of the Company.

2. Continuing connected transaction relating to
Tamarind International Limited
On 28 November 2011, Tamarind International Limited ("Tamarind")
(for its own and on behalf of its subsidiaries from time to time
(together with Tamarind are collectively referred to as “Tamarind
Group")) entered into a master lease agreement (“Master Lease
Agreement”) with Wellbuild International Limited (“Wellbuild")
(for its own and on behalf of its subsidiaries from time to time
(together with Wellbuild are collectively referred to as "Wellbuild
Group")) whereby Wellbuild Group agreed to lease to Tamarind
Group certain portion of a commercial building in Shanghai,
PRC ("Properties") with gross floor area of approximately 1,967
square metres by way of sub-letting arrangement for a term of
3 years commencing on 1 April 2012. The monthly rent (inclusive
of management fee) payable by Tamarind to Wellbuild under the
Master Lease Agreement is HK$330,000. The Properties are used by
Tamarind Group as its Shanghai office.

Wellbuild is (i) a wholly-owned subsidiary of Roly International;
and (i) a controlled corporation and an associate of Mr. WANG
Lu Yen who is an executive Director, the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company and a director of Wellbuild.
Accordingly, Wellbuild and its subsidiaries are regarded as
connected persons of the Company.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
consider that these continuing connected transactions were conducted
in the usual and ordinary course of business of the Group on normal
commercial terms and in accordance with the agreements. The Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) are of the view
that the terms of these continuing connected transactions were fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

All connected transactions were reviewed by the independent non-
executive Directors at the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 6
July 2012. The independent non-executive Directors confirmed that the
aforesaid connected transactions were entered into (a) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; (b) on normal commercial
terms; and (c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Connected transactions (continued)

In accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
the auditors of the Company to perform certain factual finding
procedures on the above continuing connected transactions on a sample
basis in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Related Services 3000
"Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information" and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor's
Letter on Continuing Connected Party Transaction under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules" issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Board confirmed that it had received a letter from the
auditors of the Company confirming the matters stated in Rule 14A.38
of the Listing Rules.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the transactions stated above.

Directors' interests in contracts

Save as disclosed above and in Note 33 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which
the Company, any of its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year under review.

Major customers and vendors of the Group

During the year under review, the five largest customers of the Group
in aggregate accounted for approximately 67.3% of the turnover of the
Group and the largest customer accounted for approximately 32.3% of
the turnover of the Group.

The five largest vendors of the Group in aggregate accounted for
approximately 18.6% of the Group's total shipment volume placed by the
Group and the largest vendor accounted for approximately 5.0% of the
Group's total shipment value placed by the Group.

None of the Directors, their respective associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the issued share capital of the Company) had any interest in the
top five vendors or customers noted above.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company's

listed securities
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's securities during the year under review.
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Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Financial summary
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 148 and 149.

Corporate governance

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the Company are
set out in the section headed "Corporate Governance Report" on pages
19 to 42.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to the
issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float throughout the year under review.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young who will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint Ernst
& Young as auditors of the Company to hold office until conclusion of
the next annual general meeting at a fee to be agreed with the Directors.

On behalf of the Board

WANG Lu Yen
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 13 July 2012

Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2012

BRBEEHE
NREAARAEREEEUBEEHELBER 2K
XARFE AR B AR FT L B[R 3R A R B E #T X

,f/'\ °

BREBE
AEERBERAEMBFE 2 XEHEEREE
BEE N E 14821498

DFER
RABIFRANERRARERER  BINF19E
QBN [ARIERRE] — -

NEFRERTR
REARRAIEEGZAHER  UREFREE
RERTERN 2 REBERAITAHAA - AR7]
REELBEFE -BEARTENARERE -

D

KGN EHAEERAGEE P BHRRLAER
EEBFBEFAE LEER  HEENAERLESR
BIEEE - — BB LOKERTEIEBARA QA
CHMEETERFAFARGER/LL - WKE
EFHEATME ORER  SERERRBSF
REgLE=2 -

REREFES

I%E
FEHRTHARE,

HE —E-_F+HA+=H



Independent Auditors’ Report

Ell ERNST & YOUNG

= ik

www.ey.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT
To the shareholders of Linmark Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Linmark Group
Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (together, the "Group") set
out on pages 61 to 147, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 30 April 2012, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors' responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

Ernst & Young
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2846 9888
Fax: +852 2868 4432
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B ZBMREE

Auditors' responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30
April 2012, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
13 July 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement
A UES

Year ended 30 April 2012
BE_Z——FA=1THILFE

2012 2011
—E—_F —T——F
Note US$'000 Us$'000
=2 FEx FET
REVENUE W= 5 100,621 95,763
Cost of sales THEM A (77,123) (72,791)
Gross profit EF 23,498 22,972
Other income H bW A 5 1,454 1,367
General and administrative expenses —RE RAITER X (22,014) (22,007)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR Z WS 29(a) 191 13
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary RE — KM B AR 2 18 29(b) (97) -
Restructuring costs EHER - (1,556)
Share of loss of a jointly-controlled entity — JE{H —ZK L FIIEH| T L~ BB (1) (2)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RREL AR R 6 3,031 787
Income tax expense Frigiif X 9 (247) (142)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR b /N |
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS HE AR
OF THE COMPANY FERA 10 2,784 645
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE AAREBERERFEEA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EBEEREAR
OF THE COMPANY (expressed in US cent) (AZEILES)) 1
Basic EEWN 0.4 0.1
Diluted B 0.4 0.1

Details of the dividends to shareholders of the Company are set out in ARRAREFTREZEEFEIEET N SRR T
Note 12 to the financial statements. 12 o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

=ANPAN >
/2\\/ | E@L&ﬁﬁ
Year ended 30 April 2012

HE_Z-—_FMA=THILFE

2012 2011
—E——fF —E=——F
US$'000 Us$'000
TEx FET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREREF 2,784 645
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Ht2EBA
Exchange differences: MEH ZRE
Translation of foreign operations HRE R INETS 75 (144)
Reclassification adjustments included in the STAGERERZ
consolidated income statement EHOERARE
- loss on dissolution of a subsidiary - RE R B AR ZEE 97 -
- loss on disposal of subsidiaries - HEWB AR EE 1 -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FEHMEZEEA
FOR THE YEAR /(1R) 173 (144)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR FEHMKAEEE 2,957 501

Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2012



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE BN R
As at 30 April 2012
RIE—ZFMA=1H

2012 201
—E—_F T
Note USs$'o00 Us$'000
B sE FEx FE
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB MERE 13 998 360
Goodwill RS 14 26,333 26,333
Available-for-sale financial asset AHEESHEE 15 84 84
Investment in a jointly-controlled entity R—FKHAREHEEZIRE 17 12 13
Deferred tax assets BRI TEE E 18 113 109
Total non-current assets EMBVEELRR 27,540 26,899
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 19 - 25
Trade receivables FEWE SRR 20 5,367 5,061
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables JEATRUE ~ 124 M EMBEIWFIE 21 3,332 2,774
Bank deposit with initial term of Ve TF e =1E A
over three months ZIRITIFR 22 1,997 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBLEFMEHAE 22 17,816 17,538
Total current assets MENEELBER 28,512 25,398
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables ERE SRR 23 5,997 6,672
Accruals and other payables et B A N EAth FE A RIS 24 8,574 6,313
Tax payable FEfSFIIR 1,468 1,413
Total current liabilities BB 16,039 14,398
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEERE 12,473 11,000
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERRBEE 40,013 37,899
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY *RBAE
Post-employment benefits & BRIKEH 25 1,070 1,151
Total non-current liability FERBEEERE 1,070 1,151
NET ASSETS EEFE 38,943 36,748
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITIRA 26 13,661 13,661
Reserves e 28(a) 25,282 23,087
TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE KAREEA
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY R 38,943 36,748

WANG Lu Yen E%[E
Director %

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis EEF
Director EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEaEHR

Year ended 30 April 2012

BE_T—_FOA=THILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LYNGIE 2N/
Share Capital  Exchange
Issued Share option Special redemption fluctuation  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve’ reserve reserve  earnings equity
ARER BRI
BETRE  ROEE BRERE FhERE & #E RERN BRgH
Note US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
iz TEx FTEr FER FER FER FER FER FER
At 1 May 2010 R-E-TFRA—H 13,500 21,632 295 184 48 (706) 6,172 41,125
Profit for the year EEEF - - - - - - 645 645
Other comprehensive income for the year:  FEEM2EMA ¢
Exchange differences on translation of ~ HREENEK 2
foreign operations EHESE - - - - - (144) - (144)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) EER2EURAN
for the year (B1B) = - - - - - (144) 645 501
Issue of shares TR0 81 1068 - - - - - 1,149
Exercise of share options TlEEEmE 27 80 1 7 - - - - 84
Equity-settled share option arrangements ~ MARRES N 7 BRELRH 27 - - 58 - - - - 58
Share options lapsed during the year FERD LWz AL - - (123) - - - 123 -
Final 2010 dividend paid ENZ2-SERHKE - - - - - - (655) (655)
Special 2010 dividend paid BENZZE-ZFRIRE - - - - - - (5242) (5,242)
Interim 2011 dividend paid BRZZ——F4EBks 1 - - - - - - (272) (272)
At 30 April 2011 R-B——EmA=1A 13,661 22,711 203 184 48 (850) m 36,748
At 1 May 2011 W=E——&R7—H 13,661 22,711 203 184 48 (850) m 36,748
Profit for the year EE‘/ﬁﬂ - - - - - - 2,784 2,784
Other comprehensive income for the year:  FEEMZEMRA
Exchange differences on translation of ~ JAEGHNER Y
foreign operations EHEE - - - - - 75 - 75
Reclassification adjustments ENHERE
- loss on dissolution of a subsidiary -BE-RINBAR
288 - - - - ) 7 ) Y
- loss on disposal of subsidiaries -HENRBARZER - - - - _ 1 _ 1
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FE2EMALEE - - - - - 173 2,784 2957
Equity-settled share option arrangements — ARHES (2 IR S 27 - - i - - - - n
Share options lapsed during the year FRERM ERE - - (8) - - - 8 -
Interim 2012 dividend paid ENZE-—EhlKs  1n2 - - - - - - (773) (773)
At 30 April 2012 R-E-—EMA=+A 13,661 22,7 226 184 48 (677) 2,790 38,943
Representing: B
Proposed 2012 final dividend BR-E-—FXEKE 12 - - - - - - 439 439
QOthers Hi 13,661 22,1 226 184 48 (677) 2,351 38,504
At 30 April 2012 RZE-—EMB=+A 13,661 22,1 226 184 48 (677) 2,790 38,943
# Special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of share capital # BRIREEEEN ARG D BITIRAEEEARQG)E B

of the Company issued and the aggregate amount of nominal value of share capital

of subsidiaries acquired by the Company through an exchange of shares.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

=IAN PAN = —1

%/ =) fﬁdimbi%
Year ended 30 April 2012

E_T - FNA=TALEEE

2012 2011
—E-——f —T——fF
Note US$'000 US$'000
BtsE FTER TET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ~ RE(KHEHE
Profit before tax: BRI A& R - 3,031 787
Adjustments for: SEHE
Share of loss of a jointly-controlled entity R —REREHETE B 1 2
Interest income FEA 5 (55) (5)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME - FE &K
plant and equipment i 6 (14) (197)
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary R —RMB AR 2 EE 6 97 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR Z kS 6 (191) (13)
Depreciation e 6 377 403
Equity-settled share option expense VARRIE 2 1+ 2 BB IR i B 6 11 58
3,257 1,041
Decrease in inventories FERD 25 44
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables JEUWE ZREZ (3EH0),/ wi (3086) 263
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, FBRRE - ke REAMEY
deposits and other receivables FIE (35m), @ (561) 4,648
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FEME SR CRd),/#Em (675) 1,301
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and fEZT B A M E M ENFKIE
other payables g,/ i) 2,264 (4,097)
Decrease in post-employment benefits & BRIEFIR D (45) (176)
Cash generated from operations KEEBHBRE 3,959 3,024
Tax paid BEAHIE (186) (516)
Net cash flows from operating activities KBRS F5 3,773 2,508
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZHMERERE
Interest received RIS 55 5
Purchases of items of property, BEVE BEX
plant and equipment B (1,022) (144)
Proceeds from disposal of items of TEDE  BEK
property, plant and equipment REFTERIE 21 365
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries HEHBARZIRERAFE 29(a) 192 13
Increase in bank deposit with initial term of  ¥J#A1F ZHRE = 18 A
over three months ZRATEFIE N (1.997) -
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing WEEE (i), s
activities Re TR (2.751) 239
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

meRenER
Year ended 30 April 2012
HE-_Z-——_FNOA=THILFE

2012 2011
—F-=F =%
US$'000 US$'000
SFESom FE1
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RETHIERERE
Proceeds from issue of shares ﬁﬂxfﬁﬁﬁgﬁy’( - 84
Dividends paid B (773) (6,169)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEEBATFER €55 (773) (6,085)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND ReRBSSEEREM
CASH EQUIVALENTS (R2) B8 249 (3,338)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year i?ﬂzfﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\%ﬁlﬁﬁ 17,538 20,953
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net MEREH s FE  FE 29 (77)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR FRZEENESZEER 17,816 17,538
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND BeRBREEEHER
CASH EQUIVALENTS ZEEER AT
Cash and bank balances W& RIRITE 17,816 17,538
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Statement of Financial Position
B IS AR 2R

As at 30 April 2012
R-ZE-—_FHA=1H

2012 2011
—E-——f —T——fF
Note US$'000 US$'000
B aE FEEm FEx
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZIEE 16 52,133 52,838
Total non-current assets IERBE EAEE 52,133 52,838
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ~ FBIRUE - e REMBEUNRZIE 21 10 2
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEEEER 22 90 95
Total current assets MENVEEBER 100 97
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Accruals and other payables ST B A I B At e~ KB 24 46 56
Total current liabilities mEBEER 46 56
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEERE 54 4
Net assets BEFE 52,187 52,879
EQUITY R
Issued capital BT 26 13,661 13,661
Reserves i 28(b) 38,526 39,218
TOTAL EQUITY R 52,187 52,879
WANG Lu Yen [ WONG Hing Lin, Dennis EEF
Director EBF Director &%
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B TSR M 5T

30 April 2012
—E—_FNA=+H
1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

2.1

Linmark

Linmark Group Limited ("Company") is an investment holding
company and its subsidiaries (together with the Company are
collectively referred to as the "Group") are principally engaged in
the sales of merchandise and the provision of procurement and
value-added services.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 25 January 2002 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
Company's shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("Stock Exchange") since 10 May
2002. In the opinion of the Directors, the holding company of the
Company is Roly International Holdings Ltd., which is incorporated
in Bermuda, and the ultimate holding company is Megastar
Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs")
(which comprise standards and interpretations approved by
the International Accounting Standards Board (the "IASB"),
and International Accounting Standards ("IASs") and Standing
Interpretations Committee interpretations approved by the
International Accounting Standards Committee that remain
in effect) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for an available-for-sale
financial asset, which has been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in United States dollars ("US$")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group and its subsidiaries for the year ended
30 April 2012. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases. All inter-group balances,
transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from inter-
group transactions and dividends are eliminated on consolidation
in full.

Group Limited Annual Report 2012
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed
to the non-controlling interest even if that results in a deficit
balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs and

new International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee

("IFRIC") interpretations for the first time for the current year's

financial statements.

IFRS 1 Amendment Amendment to IFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards
- Limited Exemption from
Comparative IFRS 7 Disclosures
for First-time Adopters

IAS 24 Amendments Related Party Disclosures

Amendments to IFRIC-Int 14
Prepayments of a Minimum

[FRIC-Int 14 Amendments

Funding Requirement

IFRIC-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments

Amendments to a number of
IFRSs issued in May 2010

Improvements to IFRSs 2010

2.1

2.2
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Notes to the Financial Statements
RS T

30 April 2012

—E-CZHWA=TH

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of
IAS 24 Amendments, and amendments to IFRS 3, IAS 1 and IAS 27
included in Improvements to IFRSs 2010, the adoption of the new

and revised IFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these

financial statements.

(a)

(b)

IAS 24 Amendments Related Party Disclosures

IAS 24 Amendments clarifies and simplifies the definitions
of related parties. The new definitions emphasise a
symmetrical view of related party relationships and clarify
the circumstances in which persons and key management
personnel affect related party relationships of an entity.
The revised standard also introduces an exemption from
the general related party disclosure requirements for
transactions with a government and entities that are
controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced
by the same government as the reporting entity. The
accounting policy for related parties has been revised to
reflect the changes in the definitions of related parties
under the revised standard. The adoption of the revised
standard did not have any impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group. Details of the related party
transactions, including the related comparative information,
are included in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Improvements to IFRSs 2010 issued in May 2010 sets out
amendments to a number of IFRSs. There are separate
transitional provisions for each standard. While the adoption
of some of the amendments may result in changes in
accounting policies, none of these amendments has had
a significant financial impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group. Details of the key amendments
most applicable to the Group are as follows:
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

(continued)

IFRS 3 Business Combinations: The amendment
clarifies that the amendments to IFRS 7, IAS
32 and IAS 39 that eliminate the exemption for
contingent consideration do not apply to contingent
consideration that arose from business combinations
whose acquisition dates precede the application of
IFRS 3 (as revised in 2008).

In addition, the amendment limits the scope of
measurement choices for non-controlling interests.
Only the components of non-controlling interests
that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the acquiree's
net assets in the event of liquidation are measured
at either fair value or at the present ownership
instruments' proportionate share of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their acquisition
date fair value, unless another measurement basis is
required by another IFRS.

The amendment also added explicit guidance to
clarify the accounting treatment for non-replaced and
voluntarily replaced share-based payment awards.

IAS 1
amendment clarifies that an analysis of each

Presentation of Financial Statements: The

component of other comprehensive income can be
presented either in the statement of changes in equity
or in the notes to the financial statements. The Group
elects to present the analysis of each component
of other comprehensive income in the statement of
changes in equity.

IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements: The amendment clarifies that the
consequential amendments from IAS 27 (as revised
in 2008) made to IAS 21, IAS 28 and IAS 31 shall be
applied prospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2009 or earlier if IAS 27 is applied
earlier.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B SRR M
30 April 2012
—E-CZHWA=TH
2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 EREMGERKREMZEBRE KRS
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING ZE 8
STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, REERLEFFEREANLRERAUTE
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial BB R AR AR 2 FTE] R AAE 7T B B B 7%
statements. EAER o
IFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time W%Eﬁ‘%i&%ﬁﬁ‘] BB B T A 2 B 5155
Adoption of International Financial F1RBEIA BB B
Reporting Standards - Severe BH - REZEBRE
Hyperinflation and Removal of G B NENEZ
Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters' BEAH BRI
IFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time @’%Eﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ‘]%ﬁﬁ BIBR BT A 3R B 15
Adoption of International CHEN BB B
Financial Reporting Standards - EA - BIFEFZ
Government Loans* BEIA
IFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial @%ﬂﬁ%i&%ﬁﬂ‘] BIBR BT A 3R A B 75
Instruments: Disclosures ETRIBEIA SHITA - E%
- Transfers of Financial Assets' EREE BTN
IFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial BB B T R 25 2 B BB B 7S o R B S 757
Instruments: Disclosures EIREFTR LHITA : RFE -
- Offsetting Financial Assets THEEREHEE
and Financial Liabilities* paCHEN
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments® BRI mE LR ESE AT A
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements* BB mERERE 105 ASARTBHE
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements* BIRBI S ImEERENS  AAZH
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other BRMERELERE 1 HERAMER Er
Entities*
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement* BRI REERFE 13 A FETE
IAS 1 Amendments Amendments to IAS 1 BRe i ERERERTA BB esER S5
Presentation of Financial BEHFEZ5)
Statements - Presentation of - ﬁ/ﬂ@@%{@gﬁ
Items of Other Comprehensive =7V p WA VN
Income®
IAS 12 Amendments Amendments to IAS 12 Income BIRSE EH R 31257 B st &R E 125
Taxes - Deferred Tax: EHES izt - EREHE -
Recovery of Underlying Assets? T EEW 2 BRI
IAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits' Bl 2 £ 51957 ESET
(Z%—%)
IAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements* R AR 2757 BV BgE
(ZF—F)
IAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and BastER| 085, RBERFRAERT]
Joint Ventures* (Z2—%) ZRE
IAS 32 Amendments Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Re Rt &R E325% ReETERI 3257
Instruments: Presentation BRI A k) TR : 25 - #
- Offsetting Financial Assets and fﬂﬁé&fﬁ?ﬁfg
Financial Liabilities® PACHES
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production BRI B RE AR BREGLERR
Phase of a Surface Mine* ZEEREF0% SR A
Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements to FEICERR BB HE R —EE
IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle* NFEZF—FZ

FRYE
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2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

o U A W N =

Apart from the above, the IASB has issued Improvements to
IFRSs 2011 which sets out amendments to a number of IFRSs
primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording. The amendments to IFRS 3 and IAS 27 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011, whereas the
amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 7, IAS 1, IAS 34 and IFRIC-Int 13
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2012 although there are separate transitional provisions for each
standard.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application. So far, the
Group considers that these new and revised IFRSs are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group's results of the operations
and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company's investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESTHBERBE @)

74

POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement,
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity. The joint venture operates as a separate entity in which
the Group and the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the
capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the duration
of the joint venture and the basis on which the assets are to be
realised upon its dissolution. The profits or losses from the joint
venture's operations and any distributions of surplus assets are
shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their respective
capital contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the joint
venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(@) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control, directly or
indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not have
unilateral control, but has joint control, directly or indirectly,
over the joint venture;

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral or joint
control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally not less
than 20% of the joint venture's registered capital and is in
a position to exercise significant influence over the joint
venture; or

(d)  an equity investment accounted for in accordance with IAS
39, if the Group holds, directly or indirectly, less than 20%
of the joint venture's registered capital and has neither
joint control of, nor is in a position to exercise significant
influence over, the joint venture.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Jointly-controlled entity

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject to
joint control, resulting in none of the participating parties having
unilateral control over the economic activity of the jointly-
controlled entity.

The Group's interest in a jointly-controlled entity is stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. The Group's share of the post-
acquisition results and reserves of the jointly-controlled entity is
included in the consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its jointly-controlled entity
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the jointly-
controlled entity, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether it measures the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition costs are expensed
as incurred.
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POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is
deemed to be an asset or liability will be recognised in accordance
with IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified
as equity, it will not be remeasured. Subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. In instances where the contingent
consideration does not fall within the scope of IAS 39, it is
measured in accordance with the appropriate IFRS.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 30 April. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of
the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units)
to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed
of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill
disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets and goodwill), the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement
in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person's

family and that person,

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

(i)

(ii)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of

property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and

any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working

condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred
after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the income statement in the period in which it is incurred.

In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the

expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying

amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with

specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off

the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its

residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of 5 years or
the lease terms

Furniture and fixtures 3 to 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 to 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases are charged to the income statement on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale financial investments, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets recorded at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

The Group's financial assets include an available-for-sale financial
asset, cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, and deposits
and other receivables.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
income in the income statement. The loss arising from impairment
is recognised in the income statement in financial costs for loans
and in other expenses for receivables.
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POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for sale
are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities
in this category are those which are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response
to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market
conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or
losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the investment
is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement in other income, or until the
investment is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the income statement in other expenses.
Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-
sale financial investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the income
statement as other income in accordance with the policies set out
for "Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (o) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management's intent to do so significantly changes in the
foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets. Reclassification to loans and receivables is
permitted when the financial assets meet the definition of
loans and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability
to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to maturity.
Reclassification to the held-to-maturity category is permitted
only when the Group has the ability and intent to hold until the
maturity date of the financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any previous
gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in equity
is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be
impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the
income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a "pass-through" arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to
the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the asset. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an
incurred “loss event") and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued
on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the
income statement.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal
payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the income statement, is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost. The
determination of what is "significant” or "prolonged” requires
judgement. "Significant" is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and "prolonged” against the period in which the
fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
income statement - is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses on
equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the income statement. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus, in
the case of loans and borrowings, directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables and other
payables.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as
a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period; and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2012

THEHE

BAERRATE

BR Gt R ERBEAN 2R B ER
BREZEAPETAFEZERAR BEX
LEE  XEAREPHRESEERY
HMTRAZTAETR GREBBARME) « &
SEREAEARETSRAGENDHE -

MELRABRVIEZEATERER NEE
RREE AN EEREBZRZMA

AEBZeRABERRENESRALE
R R -

kst &
TRABEHEBFUATORMETE

EAREE
RERERR T RERREERRER
BERMNERIRBHK AT E - EHITRY
EEFEXN ASRABBERAARIEK B
EN kEBEORAEROHERE &8
BERM @R T ARER -

BEAARG RIRBEEREATEREE
Ko BB BR A KA A] Sk — B0 A0 B A K
REFE - BERFREHGF AR R 2B
R ©

HBEERER

AEBMB L2 MBERGQEEZREL
FEMNKAENHEARREERHARE
RIBES T A Z GRREE D HFIAM A
BRZAK  UBEREORVIRATFE
WHBEHERZEREIERZHAERE
RERRABG - BRERR - AEEAKNA
T —EFZRSEHMBRERE QETH
B ()BRBRERRBETREEEMFH
YHREGBEZEE S RMBERERZE
BoOR (WER) Rt -



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if, and
only if, there is currently an enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price
for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments where there is no active market, the fair
value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such
techniques include using recent arm's length market transactions;
reference to the current market value of another instrument which
is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis and
other valuation models.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs
to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the income statement.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
certain products are recognised based on sales volume and past
experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their
present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of merchandise, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b)  commission income, when the underlying goods procured by
the Group are shipped;

() from the rendering of services, reimbursement income
from customers, handling fee income and inspection and
laboratory testing income, when the services are rendered;
and

(d)  interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments ("equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the income statement for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

(i) Pension schemes
Defined contribution pension scheme
The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF
Scheme") under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes

Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees' basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute 15% to 200%
of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEETHEHE @
POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued) HittgEER (&)

(i) Pension schemes (continued) ()  BKLiE (&)

Defined benefit pension scheme

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan,
which requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered fund, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the scheme. The cost of providing benefits
under the defined benefit plan is determined separately
using the projected unit credit valuation method. Actuarial
gains and losses are recognised as income or expense when
the net cumulative unrecognised actuarial gains and losses
at the end of the previous reporting year exceed 10% of
the higher of the defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets at the date. These gains and losses are
recognised over the expected average remaining working
lives of the employees participating in the plan.

The past service cost is recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits
become vested. If the benefits vest immediately following
the introduction of, or changes to, a pension plan, the past
service cost is recognised immediately.

The defined benefit asset or liability comprises the present
value of the defined benefit obligation less past service cost
not yet recognised and less the fair value of plan assets out
of which the obligations are to be settled. Plan assets are
assets that are held by a long term employee benefit fund or
qualifying insurance policies. Plan assets are not available to
the creditors of the Group nor can they be paid directly to
the Group. Fair value is based on market price information
and in the case of quoted securities it is the published bid
price. The value of any defined benefit asset recognised
is restricted to the sum of any past service cost not yet
recognised and the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plan.

An actuarial estimate is made by a professionally qualified
independent actuary, using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method, of the present value of the
Group's future defined benefit obligation under the defined
benefit pension plan earned by the employees as at the end
of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken
as at the end of the reporting period is permitted to be
carried forward and utilised by the respective employees
in the following year. An accrual is made at the end of the
reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid
leave earned during the year by the employees and carried
forward.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated before the normal retirement date or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to either: terminating
the employment of current employees according to a
detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal; or
providing termination benefits as a result of an office made
to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
are discounted to their present value.

Dividends
Final dividends proposed by the Directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section of

the statement of financial position, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends
have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in United States dollars,
which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. All differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are taken to the income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
The gain or loss arising on retranslation of a non-monetary item is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on item
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
a jointly-controlled entity are currencies other than the United
States dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group at the exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period and their income statements are translated
into United States dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
carrying amount of goodwill at 30 April 2012 was US$26,333,000
(2011: US$26,333,000). More details are given in Note 14 to the
financial statements.

Trade receivables

The Group's management determines the provision for impairment
of trade receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability
of the receivables. This assessment is based on the credit history
of its customers and other debtors and the current market
condition which requires the use of judgements and estimates.
When the expectation on the recoverability of trade and
other receivables is different from the original estimates, such
difference will impact the carrying value of trade receivables and
impairment provisions in the periods in which such estimate has
been changed. Management assesses the provision at the end of
each reporting period. The carrying amounts of trade receivables
and other receivables as at 30 April 2012 was US$5,367,000
(2011: US$5,061,000) and US$1,617,000 (2011: US$1,717,000),
respectively. More details are given in Notes 20 and 21 to the
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Income tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of
the provision for tax and the timing of payment of the related
taxes. There are transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact on the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the periods in which such determination is made. The
carrying amount of deferred tax assets as at 30 April 2012 was
US$113,000 (2011: US$109,000).

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses carried
forward to the extent that it is probable (i.e., more likely than
not) that future taxable profits will be available against which
the unused tax losses can be utilised, based on all available
evidence. Recognition primarily involves judgement regarding the
future performance of the particular legal entity or tax group in
which the deferred tax asset has been recognised. A variety of
other factors are also evaluated in considering whether there is
convincing evidence that it is probable that some portion or all
of the deferred tax assets will ultimately be realised, such as the
existence of taxable temporary differences, tax planning strategies
and the periods in which estimated tax losses can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets and related financial
models and budgets are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and to the extent that there is insufficient convincing
evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be available within
the utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the tax losses carried
forward, the asset balance will be reduced and charged to the
income statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of an available-for-sale financial asset

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale and
recognises movements of their fair values in equity. When the fair
value declines, management makes assumptions about the decline
in value to determine whether there is an impairment that should
be recognised in the income statement. At 30 April 2012, no
impairment losses have been recognised for the available-for-sale
financial asset (2011: Nil). The carrying amount of the available-
for-sale financial asset was approximately US$84,000 (2011:
US$84,000). More details are given in Note 15 to the financial
statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has two reportable
operating segments as follows:

(a) sales of merchandise including garments, fashion
accessories, labels, hardgoods and consumer electronic
products; and

(b)  provision of services including procurement service and
value-added services relating to the procurement agency
business.

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure
of adjusted profit before tax from continuing operations. The
adjusted profit before tax from continuing operations is measured
consistently with the Group's profit before tax from continuing
operations except that interest income, gain on disposal of a
yacht, gain on disposal of subsidiaries, loss on dissolution of a
subsidiary, restructuring costs, share of loss of a jointly-controlled
entity as well as corporate and other unallocated expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. RETEER ®

Sales of Provision of
merchandise services Total
BEmiHE R AR &5t
Year ended 30 April 2012 us$'oo0 Us$'000 US$'000
BE-Z—_FWNA=1tHLTFE FEx FEx FEx
Segment revenue: DEWE
Revenue from external customers KRB INREF 2 Wz 86,156 14,465 100,621
Segment results DEEE 1,316 1,857 3,173
Interest income FEHA 55
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary fFEL—KKIB AR 2 E1E (97)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries L B A Rl e 191
Share of loss of a jointly-controlled  f&{f—ZR L [RI4% | &F 42
entity ZEiE m
Corporate and other unallocated D% K H A Rk 5 e
expenses X (290)
Profit before tax B A5 AT v ) 3,031
Income tax expense FriSfip = (247)
Profit for the year F[E A 2,784
Other segment information: HiapEEHR -
Depreciation e 146 231 377
Capital expenditures NG 344 678 1,022
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE 2 IR FRE 34 89 123
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, RETHER ®
Sales of Provision of
merchandise services Total
EmiHE AR &5t
Year ended 30 April 2011 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'o00
HE-T——FHA=1THIEFE FET FET FET
Segment revenue: EWE
Revenue from external customers R BEINAR P 7 Uz 80,577 15,186 95,763
Segment results DHEEE 1,023 1,452 2,475
Interest income FEWA 5
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FKMBEAR 2 W= 13
Gain on disposal of a yacht HE — R 2 g 192
Restructuring costs HHEEH (1,556)
Share of loss of a jointly-controlled &5 —R R H|FE
entity ZEE (2)
Corporate and other unallocated 1B K& Hib R D EE
expenses X (340)
Profit before tax B 758 A1 5 ) 787
Income tax expense PSR (142)
Profit for the year F T 645
Other segment information: HipEER :
Depreciation e 189 214 403
Capital expenditures BRI 53 91 144
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE 5 IR FURE 50 308 358
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

4.

Geographical information b 35 & K

(a) Revenue from external customers ) REIINARFPZWE
2012 201
=F-=F —F——F
US$'000 US$'000
FER FET
Australia BN 37,433 32,128
Africa ES 24,472 21,072
Europe BOM 20,280 18,816
North America b 3F=M 11,655 9,509
Hong Kong BB 1,213 1,100
Others Hip 5,568 13,138
100,621 95,763

The revenue information above is based on the location of

FRRSEERDRETEP A Z

the customers. ) o
(o) Non-current assets b) EMEBEE
2012 201
—E—_—F —_F—

us$'o00 Us$'000
SEESTT FEx
Hong Kong BB 27,069 26,407
Others Hip 274 299
27,343 26,706

The non-current assets information above is based on

the location of assets and excludes an available-for-sale

financial asset and deferred tax assets.

LAFRBEEERTIRIEEEME
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, RESFEHR @)

Information about major customers FHRXEEFZER

Revenue from major customers, each of them amounted to 10% or KEEERF (BRZERFPEAERRE
1000304 F) 2 W E 5T -

more of the Group's revenue is set out below:

Operating segment 2012 201

REDE —E-—F i

US$'000 US$'000

e TFET

Customer A Sales of merchandise 32,496 23,290
EPEA [EhEEEE

Customer B Sales of merchandise 24,466 21,098
%FB Bk

56,962 44,388

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5. WHERHEMUA

AEBMZWRMAAREERE  HiEE
EmBRENESIMR 2 BHEFE
BEBARIRERE 2 (EE -

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and
trade discounts; commission income and the value of services
rendered.

AREE 2 Was M EMBAZ AT

An analysis of the Group's revenue and other income is as follows:

2012 20M
—E2--F —T——%
US$'000 US$'000
FEx F=ET
Revenue Uk &5

Sales of merchandise BEmisE 86,156 80,577
Commission income e WA 14,463 15,113
Rendering of services RMHRS 2 73
100,621 95,763

Other income Hapug A
Bank interest income HRITH B YA 55 5
Reimbursement income from customers KB &P HE NI A 26 20
Handling fee income FEBWA 328 362
Inspecting and laboratory test income BB R ERE LA 374 449
Others Hib 671 531
1,454 1,367
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PBRBIANER
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEEE 7 B AL AT E R TD AR (GEA) A
(crediting): T&IE
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——%
Note us$'ooo Us$'000
Bt = FER FET
Cost of inventories sold EEFEZHAR 76,389 71,860
Cost of services provided E IR IRTS 2 A AN 734 931
Depreciation e 13 377 403
Minimum lease payments under LEHE THELS
operating leases: Gtk AN
Furniture and equipment ER TN L 105 124
Office premises and staff quarters WMATEMNNETRHRE 1,344 1,548
1,449 1,672
Auditors' remuneration* 2% BRI B
Audit services BEZRB
- current year - KEE 281 313
- overprovision in prior years - BEFERERE - (55)
Non-audit services IEEAZ AR TS 21 110
302 368
Employee benefit expense EERAMFZ
(including Directors' remuneration (BIEEE
- Note 7): - fEEE7) -
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e - JEA oL 12,688 13,640
Staff welfare and benefits BTaf k@it 1,204 1,548
Equity-settled share option expense  LAPRHE Sz 1+ 7 BERRAE B A n 58
Pension scheme contributions” ‘E%fﬁ\‘ﬁ‘l‘iwf LR
- defined contribution scheme REMTRET A 424 382
- defined benefit plans - E%ﬁi%&ﬁ‘]%ﬁ'%ﬂ 83 na
14,410 15,742
Foreign exchange differences, net VE N EZRFRE 143 (47)
Impairment of trade receivables FEUE 5RO (E 20 123 358
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWME - M= LEH
plant and equipment ZWEs (14) (191)
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary RE— KRB AR ZEE 29(b) 97 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR Z Uk 29(a) (191) (13)
* Of the above audit and non-audit services fees, US$277,000 (2011: * s LIEE RGBT E‘JEZWOOO%
US$315,000) and US$19,000 (2011: US$103,000) respectively are payable to JL (ZZ——%F : 315000% 1) &19000%75(
the Company's auditors. ——%F : 103,000%7T) JER TANA BZELAD -
At 30 April 2012, the Group had no material forfeited contributions available i CAEETEERZ
to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in future years (2011: Nil). é”ﬁl %ﬁﬁi LX}R%?&){{%#\ (—E——%:
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7. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 7. EEHH
Directors' remuneration for the vyear, disclosed pursuant to the REFRE ETHRRREEREEME161
Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies BAETIREZESHMNT -
Ordinance, is as follows:
2012 2011
—E—_F —F—%F
US$'000 Us$'000
Group REE FER FET
Fees i 132 132
Other emoluments: Hib B2 :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EARREYHE 898 1,844
Performance related bonus FIREMETEAT 300 -
Equity-settled share option expense VARG #E 2 5 2 BB R B 1R 7 33
Pension scheme contributions RIREET IR 49 66
1,254 1,943
Total st 1,386 2,075
Certain Directors were granted share options in respect of their ETESCHBESFRAREEMIEH 2 RB
services to the Group under the share option scheme of the BERANTBRESSET CEBRE - E
Company, further details of which are set out in Note 27 to the —SHBERN P F R 27 - ZFER
financial statements. The fair value of such options which has B2 AFEDRRLBHER - WERE
been recognised in the income statement over the vesting period, BRI ER AR - Mt AXRFEH
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included Bz 2 2ENE BER EX 2EE 5
in the financial statements for the current year is included in the PEEA o

above Directors' remuneration disclosures.
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7.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 7. EBFM @
The emoluments of each Director are set out below: BREECHMEFIINT
Equity-
Salaries, settled
allowances  Performance share Pension
and benefits related option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonus expense contributions remuneration
MR A
e RE  RBHE ZBRE  EHEHd
e RENANE A BR 3 b
BE-E-—f US$'000 US$'000 US$'000  US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Year ended 30 April 2012 MA=THLEE Txx Txx Txx TE=n TER TER
Executive Directors: HITES !
WANG Lu Yen () TRE() - 512 200 2 10 724
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis (i) EE (i) - 386 100 2 39 527
Non-executive Director: FHTES
WONG Wai Ming E1EH 33 - - 1 - 34
Independent non-executive Directors: BYFHTEES
WANG Arthur Minshiang TR 33 - - 1 - 34
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius HENT 33 - - - - 33
Jakob Jacobus Jakob Jacobus
Koert TULLENERS Koert TULLENERS 33 - - 1 - 34
132 898 300 7 49 1,386
HEZZ——F
Year ended 30 April 2011 MA=THLEE
Executive Directors: HITES !
WANG Lu Yen (i) THA() . 332 - 5 10 347
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis (i) HEF() - 371 - 7 19 397
Michel BOURLON (i) Michel BOURLON (iii) - 1,057 - 5 33 1,095
KHOO Kim Cheng (iv) BB R(iv) - 84 - 4 4 92
Non-executive Director: FHTES !
WONG Wai Ming =EH 33 - - 5 - 38
Independent non-executive Directors: BV FHTEES :
WANG Arthur Minshiang ThE 33 - - 3 - 36
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius MEDT 33 - - 1 - 34
Jakob Jacobus Jakob Jacobus
Koert TULLENERS Koert TULLENERS 33 - - 3 - 36
132 1,844 - 33 66 2,075
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7. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)

Notes:

U]

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

Mr. WANG Lu Yen was appointed chief executive officer with effect from 8
October 2010.

Mr. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis was appointed executive Director with effect from
1 September 2010 but his full year's remuneration package has been included
as Director's emolument for the year ended 30 April 2011.

Mr. Michel BOURLON resigned as executive Director and chief executive
officer with effect from 8 October 2010. His employment with the Company
was terminated with effect from 7 January 2011. The amount stated in
salaries, allowances and benefits in kind included payments on termination of
employment.

Mr. KHOO Kim Cheng retired by rotation as executive Director with effect
from 27 August 2010 and resigned as employee under the Director's
service agreement with the Company with effect from 28 February 2011.
The Director's emolument included the remuneration paid to him up to 28
February 2011 when the Director's service agreement with the Company was
terminated.

There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2011: Nil).

During the year ended 30 April 2012, no emolument was paid to
or receivable by any of the Directors as an inducement to join or

upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office as

a director of any member of the Group or of any other office in

connection with the management of the Group (2011: Nil).
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8.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 8.

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2011: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
in Note 7 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining
three (2011: two) non-director, highest paid employees for the year
are as follows:

AuREHHES

FALUKSFHERRERL (ZT——
F=f) BEE - HFMFBEN XK E
7o FR AB=MU(ZFT——F: ML)

Rea M FESREBZHMFBOT

2012 2011

—E—=fF —=——F

US$'000 US$'000

Group REHE FTEn FEx
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBINREWMRER 663 445
Performance related bonuses FIRHMATEAL 90 -
Equity-settled share option expense LARR ¥ 7~ 2 BE R i B 3 1
Pension scheme contributions RIRE B " 2
767 458

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands presented in Hong
Kong dollars ("HK$") is as follows:

EEHMeFEERE ZHB (SUBT 8

7Tl 25) BIATHENAZRNT -

Number of employees

EEAE
2012 2011
—E—_F —F—%F
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7T 2 2,000,000/%5 7T
(equivalent to US$192,802 (FE57192,8023 T
to US$257,069) 257,069 7T) 2 L
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7T & 3,000,000/ 7T
(equivalent to US$257,070 (8557 257,070% T
to US$385,604) %2385,6043E7T) 1 1
3 2

During the year ended 30 April 2012, no emolument was paid
to or received by any of the five highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Group (2011: Nil).

REBE_T-—_FOA=+THELFE #
BEREMNAURSHMERE X NRBRSE
Wi B AT fa] B <& 1 75 i B8 s % N B8 AN 5= 181 B
ZRE JMERBBASEEHEENR

2 RERAE (T ——F &) -
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FBHRX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% BEEFNERDIBEFARBBEE A
(2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong JE SR B i M 12 16.500 (ZF —— 4 : 16.5%)
Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable outside Hong R EEE  BEUIIME 2 BRI
Kong have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the EAHIERREASE S EMEaERER
jurisdictions in which the Group operates. ZIRITHEGTE o
2012 2011
—E——fF —=——%F
US$'000 Us$'000
Group REE M FTEx FExT
Current BVER
- Hong Kong -&BE 250 123
- Outside Hong Kong - BENAIMb R 106 74
Overprovision in prior years B FEHBERE (105) (40)
Deferred (Note 18) IERE (fI5E18) (4) (15)
Total tax charge for the year RFERIAR L B 247 142

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax
expense at the effective tax rates are as follows:

HERRBEARAREARZBHER

AR

AEAERMNETEREAENGRBRATEF 2
HERYHRERREFTEZHEBERS 2

HERMT ¢

2012 2011
—E2--F —F——F
US$'000 Us$'000
Group REHE FEr FEx
Profit before tax R 5 A 3,031 787
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% £ 16.500EE MR E 2 FHIE
(2011: 16.5%) —ET——% :16.5%) 500 130
Adjustments in respect of current tax of B A BN ERFE T8
previous periods 2 TR (105) (40)
Effect of different rates for companies P EAth BERE R A8 & T
operating in other jurisdictions NABTEATRRE 2 &8 35 36
Income not subject to tax BERBUA (5.132) (2,224)
Expenses not deductible for tax PRI 2 4,834 1,569
Tax losses utilised from previous periods E) AT B 2 BB E 1R (69) (187)
Tax losses not recognised RIEARZ TRIEEE 150 680
Others Hib 34 178
Tax charge FRIER X 247 142
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10.

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

As of the date of the annual report, the Group received protective
assessments amounting to approximately HK$84,000,000
(equivalent to US$10,769,000) from the Inland Revenue
Department in Hong Kong ("IRD") in respect of queries on the
modus operandi of the Group and the chargeability of the profits
for the years of assessment from 2003/2004 to 2005/2006.

In response to enquiries from IRD, an independent tax adviser
has been engaged to handle this case and the relevant
information has been furnished to IRD for review. In addition,
Tax Reserve Certificates amounting to HK$3,250,000 (equivalent
to US$417,000) have been purchased by two subsidiaries of the
Company in pursuit of the holdover of tax demanded under the
protective assessments for these years.

Taking into account the advice given by the independent tax
adviser, the Group maintains the view that sufficient tax provision
has been made in the financial statements.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company for
the year ended 30 April 2012 is approximately US$70,000 (2011:
US$647,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company (Note 28(b)).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

The Group had no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue for
the year ended 30 April 2012.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended
30 April 2011 is based on the profit for that year attributable
to owners of the Company, adjusted to reflect the interest on
the share options. The weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares
in issue during that year, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares.

10.

11.

FREBF (2

EA$¢$&?IJ%§EIHH AEECRAERASE
.73%_——?_'2 S CEENE-—FRER =
FAFEBEEANFREERBEF

ZEEW%HRZE#HJ BEESE#RBER ([H
R 1) RE T T 484,000,000 7T (B
710,769,000 7T) °

REBERz2EN  AEBEEZEB KIS
FARIRIB U EZ - WO IRE A EER A
REBERN - o AARMKHKERR
ERERE BN ZSEEREETHM
WERTAT 2 TR - BB E{E3,250,000% 7T
(FZF0417,00037T) Z RS

REBBURBBERNER 2K A&EH
RRERPHRRAEL TN IR

RRRFERABGEEF

(E-T——FNUNA=ZFTHIEFE ARQ
RAIEA NE(RERE m A 470,000 7T (ZF
——4F : 647,000 7T) EFIARR B
= (MI5E28(b)) °

BREF
BREXRBNIREARAEE AREF
Emﬂ&iﬁﬂﬁ?‘ﬁ iRz N T 15 88

BE T _FHUA=THLFEAKH
WEEBTAETEN LB -

BE T —FOA=THILFESkKE
%%%‘JE*ETFZS”ﬂ%ﬁ}\lﬁ“fﬁéiiﬁiﬁé
FETHE > WREFEARBRREREZ#
m e quéﬁfﬁfrﬁﬂ%Z B AR BT

BEEREXRBMNERERZZFARND
TTaﬁHxZ%(E 3 R 3% & i A pn g - 15
BRNEAEEENEBRIBRITE
SRS R AT
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109



110

Notes to the Financial Statements

g e Egres
30 April 2012
—T-_FWA=+H
11. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 11. 8REHN &
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based SIRERNLEERNTIEEATEIESTE -
on:
2012 201
—E—_F —_F—
Earnings B
Profit attributable to owners of the SAEEREARRBTAER
Company, used in the basic earnings P N/NCIE Z DN
per share calculation (US$'000) FEfEmA (F%7T) 2,784 645
Weighted average number of ordinary shares & &R > T P&
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  5+& & I8 B A Z R F AT A
in issue during the year used in the basic ZERNDBITERK
earnings per share calculation ('000) ZINEEFS 8 (Fh%) 683,069 680,568
Effect of dilution - weighted average R E - LA
number of ordinary shares: ZINFEFEHE
Share options ('000) B (F%) - 8,830
683,069 689,398
12. DIVIDENDS 12. BE
2012 2011
—E—C—F —T—%
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Interim, paid, of 0.88 HK cent AT EAIR S B A AR 0.88 B
(2011: 0.31 HK cent) per ordinary share —E——F 1 031810) 773 272
Final, proposed, of 0.50 HK cent (2011: Nil)  ##/R AR HAAL B &I E 38BA%0.5075 11
per ordinary share —E——%F®) 439 -
1,212 272

At a meeting held on 13 July 2012, the Company's directors
proposed a final dividend of 0.50 HK cent per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 30 April 2012. This proposed dividend is
not reflected as dividends payable in these financial statements,
but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for
the year ending 30 April 2013.
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ARRESEERBE-_T—=—FHWNA=
THIEFEZRAKE AERE BAR0.50%8
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. %  BERRE
Yacht and
Leasehold Furniture and motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HEMEEE B REE BRERSE &5t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Group AEH FTEx TEx FTEn TEn
30 April 2012 —E-—EWNA=+H
At 1 May 2011: RZE——FHHA—HB:
Cost B 2,454 4,941 304 7,699
Accumulated depreciation 2:HinE (2,345) (4,695) (299) (7.339)
Net carrying amount RmEFE 109 246 5 360
At 1 May 2011, net of RZE——FHH—H "
accumulated depreciation Mk EHIeE 109 246 5 360
Additions NE 492 230 300 1,022
Disposals HE 1) (6) - 7)
Depreciation provided NEEEE
during the year e (169) (164) (44) (377)
Exchange realignment [E R 2 2) - -
At 30 April 2012, net of RZT——FMA=+8 "
accumulated depreciation MR E 433 304 261 998
At 30 April 2012: RZE——FNA=1H":
Cost R 2,825 4,734 403 7,962
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (2.392) (4,430) (142) (6,964)
Net carrying amount BREFE 433 304 261 998
30 April 2011 —E2——fFMWA=+H
At 1 May 2010: R_Z—ZFHA—RH:
Cost PR 2,570 4,855 664 8,089
Accumulated depreciation 2t e (2,378) (4,473) (452) (7,303)
Net carrying amount REFE 192 382 212 786
At 1 May 2010, net of R-ZE-ZFRA—B
accumulated depreciation M R eE 192 382 212 786
Additions NE 42 102 - 144
Disposals HE (2) (5) (167) (174)
Depreciation provided REERE
during the year e (128) (235) (40) (403)
Exchange realignment [E = 5 2 - 7
At 30 April 2011, net of RZE—FMA=+AH "
accumulated depreciation Mk R E 109 246 5 360
At 30 April 2011: RZZE—FMA=+8:
Cost B 2,454 4,941 304 7,699
Accumulated depreciation S E (2,345) (4,695) (299) (7,339)
Net carrying amount SRTEFE 109 246 5 360
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Goodwill has been allocated to the following cash-generating
units, which are reportable segments, for impairment testing:

° Sales of merchandise; and
° Provision of services.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by senior
management. There are a number of assumptions and estimates
involved in the preparation of cash flow projections for the
period covered by the approved budget. Key assumptions include
the expected growth in revenues and gross margin, timing
of future capital expenditures, long term growth rates and
selection of discount rates. Management prepares the financial
budgets reflecting actual and prior year performance and market
development expectations. Judgement is required to determine the
key assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and changes
to key assumptions can significantly affect these cash flow
projections. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 10% (2011: 7%). The estimated growth rate used to extrapolate
the cash flows of the cash-generating units beyond the five-year
period is no more than 5%.
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14. GOODWILL 14. &
2012 2011
=F-=F B
Us$'o000 US$'000
Group AEE FEx FEx
At beginning and at end of year RF AT f2 F 48 26,333 26,333
At end of year R

Cost AR 34,827 34,827
Accumulated impairment ZEPRE (8,494) (8,494)
Net carrying amount IR FE 26,333 26,333

Impairment testing of goodwill BB R ERE

BECOEETIRSELEM (BB H
BEBOR) EREH -

o HEmHE R

o RHAERF

WeEESE ME’J—M&@ﬁ%ﬁBﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
FTEEET  FATFEBRNNEEEIE
Er]ﬁﬂ‘%ﬁ S AEEERHNR S RE TR
B ERBEEHETEEERHEBZEESR
EEAFSEREBRELGRT - TE2/BE
BREBERENER2BHEE  RKREAX
AL zERE - REEEERITIHAE 7
E-EREERETRMEBENFFESR
BEMSERBHZPHRBEE - RETH
SRERIMRAZETERRHT EEL
HiEr MEZBRENEHEZEHRLSTE
%E‘\EU%EK%;;E © fﬁw //ILE%E\/E\‘JT%FH E"]Tﬁ
WERAE100 (ZZT——F : 700) » #HBAF
B ReELEENESREMANER
A HAB% °



14. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the cash-

generating units is as follows:

14. B8 @)
BERENR &)

I

PEREEERCELBEMNNHEZREEN

Sales of merchandise Provision of services Total
HmHEE R AR &t
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 201
“RCF T F ZB-2F T F ZF-2F T F
us$‘o00 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 us$'o00 us$'o00
Group AEH FEx FET FEx FET TXx FET
Goodwill SRS 26,333 26,333 - - 26,333 26,333
15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET 15. AItHEESRMEE
2012 201
—F-=F —F——F
US$'000 US$'000
Group rEE FTET FET
Club membership, at fair value egs (BATE) 84 84

The fair value of the club membership is determined with reference

to the price quoted by the relevant club.

TR2EB@EMZE
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. RMBARIZRE
2012 2011
—E-CF —E——F
US$'000 Us$'000
Company RN F] FEx FEx
Unlisted shares, at cost RETRD (RAEA) 9,987 9,987
Due from subsidiaries A NGB 42,696 42,851
Due to a subsidiary e —RKW B A RIR0A (550) -
52,133 52,838
The amounts due from and due to subsidiaries are unsecured, JEUL R FERIE AR RIS EEET . &
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. B BWEETERE -
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEWBAFGFBEET :

Percentage of
equity attributable

Place of to the Company
incorporation/ Nominal value of ARAELE
registration and issued ordinary share/ REES L
Name operations registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
L, ERTEERRES
£ B S-St M RAEE =% i FTEXH
Benchmark Profits Limited British Virgin Islands Uss$1 100 - Investment holding
HBARRES E REEK
Dowry Peacock Group Limited United Kingdom GBP300 - 60 Investment holding
HE 300 8 REEK
eServices (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 - Dormant
HBRRRES (E HEEK
eServices Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Dormant
EE 100,000 7T UEEG
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

16. RMBLARZRE @)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Place of to the Company
incorporation/ Nominal value of LTS
registration and issued ordinary share/ BRREEDL
Name operations registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
R, ERTEERRE
&5 AR EE L AR AE E E# Mg FEXB
Ever Eagle Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
EBERRES E REER
Golden Rules Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Investment holding
BEERAF 0 1T REER
IGCS Group Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
EBEARHS (E REEKR
IGCS International Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100 Dormant
RERARES e HEEG
IGCS Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Dormant
50 28T EER®
International Laboratory Services Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of laboratory
Limited BB BT services
B e RBAR LR Rt T R
ISO International (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands Uss$1 - 100 Dormant
HBRRARES (E TEXK
ISO International (Holdings) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Provision of technical
B 100/7T support and
management services,
and trading of home
lifestyle consumer
electronic products
RS R RERE
R RXEHE
BEfEMES
Linmark Agency (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 - 100 Investment holding and
HERARES 50,000 7T procurement agent

REZRBRRRREAE

MEEEMERAT —2——FF% = 115



Notes to the Financial Statements
RS T

30 April 2012

—E-CZHWA=TH

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. RMBARZIRE (&)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Place of to the Company
incorporation/ Nominal value of KT
registration and issued ordinary share/ REES L
Name operations registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
EMRL, ERTZERRAR
% MRS AR AEE B 27 TEER
Linmark Agency (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Procurement agent
BF 10,0007 70 RERE
Linmark Development (BVI) Limited  British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100 Procurement agent
RBRARES (Ev REERE
Linmark Electronics Limited** United Kingdom GBP12,500 - 60 Dormant
(In liquidation) it 12,5005 4% ERENR
(&)
Linmark (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding and
W& (B8) BRAR 0 2T procurement agent
REERRFERE
Linmark International (Bangladesh)  Bangladesh Taka4,120,000 - 100 Procurement agent
Ltd. ** I (2011: Taka20,000) RERE
4,120,0008 £
(Z2—%F:
20,0008 )
Linmark International (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong HK$200,000 - 100 Investment holding,
Limited BB 200,000/ 7T procurement
WEER (B%) ARAF agent and trading of
merchandise
REER - HERE
kBmES
Linmark Merchandise Consultancy People's Republic of RMB1,500,000 - 100 Provision of marketing

(Shenzhen) Limited**
WERRESZEA ORI
BRAE"

Linmark (UK) Limited”

Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2012
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

16. RMIB AT ZRE (45

Percentage of
equity attributable

Place of to the Company
incorporation/ Nominal value of ROF RS
registration and issued ordinary share/ BEELL
Name operations registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
L, ERTEBRRE
=1 AR E R AR A E B i TEXH
Linmark Westman Investments British Virgin Islands Us$n 100 - Investment holding
Limited HBRBRES AE REER
Market Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Dormant
WERBRARE] N BT EERK
Merchandise Creative, Inc. British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100 Dormant
HBERRES E EER®
Merchandise Creative Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Dormant
Y 10,000/ 7T EERS
Pacific Technologies Limited United Kingdom GBP45,000 - 60 Dormant
B 45,000 8 TERS
Power Path Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Dormant
BEARAA e 17T TERY
Tamarind Agency Limited” British Virgin Islands Us$1 - - Investment holding
HEBRBRES E REER
Tamarind International Holdings British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited RBERARES E REER
Tamarind International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding and
Bh VBT trading of merchandise

REZREARES
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. RIBRATZRE (®)

118

Percentage of
equity attributable

Place of to the Company
incorporation/ Nominal value of KT
registration and issued ordinary share/ BRREDL
Name operations registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
L, ERTLEBERRE
&5 ARG L A RAEE HiZ CiE:3 FERK
Tamarind Marketing Services Macao MOP100,000 - - Trading of merchandise
(Macao Commercial Offshore) S 100,000%) % E
Limited*
RELTIERE CRFIBE=
HERE) ARAT
Tamarind Trading (Shanghai) People's Republic of RMB5,500,000 - 100 Procurement agent
Limited™ China ARHE5,500,0007T and trading of
AEMLES (L) ERA™ HE merchandise
FEREREARES
Trend Xpress (Bangladesh) Ltd.* Bangladesh Taka20,000 - 100 Provision of market
= 20,0005 F trend consultancy
services
REDSERIGER
RS
Trend Xpress, Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
EEERARES (E and provision
of market trend
consultancy
services
REERKRMHT S
BB A RS
Trend Xpress Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding,
B M RAERAH BB 28T provision of

Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2012
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16.

KRB AR ZRE (&)

Percentage of

equity attributable

Place of to the Company
incorporation/ Nominal value of LTS
registration and issued ordinary share/ BRREEDL
Name operations registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
HERL ERTEBRRE
2 EM RS L% EMBAEE EE  ME EEEE
Westman Linmark (Thailand) Thailand Ordinary shares - 100 Procurement agent
Limited RE Baht5,880,000 and RERE
preference shares
Baht6,120,000
& 177k 5,880,000 8 [
1B 5EA%6,120,000% %
Westman (Singapore) Private Singapore $$200,000 - 100 Procurement agent
Limited K 200,000 13 TT REEHE
Westown Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Dormant
BhAERLA BB 100,000/ 7T YEXT
## Linmark Electronics Limited was put in administration on 28 July 2009 which ## Linmark Electronics Limited A —ZEZNF+H =+

was converted into creditors’ voluntary liquidation on 25 January 2010.

+ Linmark International (Bangladesh) Ltd. allotted 41,000 ordinary shares of +

*¥

Taka100 each to its existing shareholder, Linmark International (Hong Kong)
Limited on 26 April 2012.

Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or another member firm of the
Ernst & Young global network.

Linmark Merchandise Consultancy (Shenzhen) Limited and Tamarind Trading
(Shanghai) Limited are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
the law of the People's Republic of China. They were not audited by Ernst
& Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young global
network.

Linmark (UK) Limited was struck off the register and dissolved on 9 August
2011.

Tamarind Agency Limited and Tamarind Marketing Services (Macao
Commercial Offshore) Limited were disposed of to an independent third party
on 29 February 2012.

**

NABEE YR-_F-FTF-A-+HH#ER
BEREABEER -

Linmark International (Bangladesh) Ltd R =& —=
FMAZ+REmMERERIMRERR (F%)
B IR 1 B A 341,000 & I E E100% KR E B

i

FZEWMBRRL IR BB LK G EBHTRE
I E M 22k T B RIS R BB B PR

MWEBRELEHZN ORI ARAFARRGEE
% (L&) ARARNBREFBEEEEMRING
BEDE - ZFAFWIEMTBLOKG AN ETS
BT S AR o] Bt 2ok & 5 R S5 765 P 2 DRABAR B B AT
EZ o

Linmark (UK) Limited A =Z——F \ANLHRZE
SO R B R AL o
Tamarind Agency Limited 2K SB35 MR CEPT

BERERE) ARAANR-TE——F_A=-+
NBHEF—RBILE=F -
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17. INVESTMENT

IN A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED

17. R—HAREHERBZRE

ENTITY
2012 201
—E-—F —T——%F
us$‘ooo us$'000
Group AEE FEx FET
Unlisted investments, at cost FEWERE (ERA) - -
Share of net assets G EEFE 12 13
12 13

Particulars of the jointly-controlled entity are as follows:

HEZEHERZFBENT

Percentage of

EiEEDH
Particulars Place of
of issued incorporation/ Ownership Voting Profit
Name shares held registration interest power sharing  Principal activities
BREE#T A
% Rt 2 15 oL fH it B FrE RERE RAN2E TEXEH
CSC Consultancy Registered capital People's Republic 50 50 50  Provision of business
Co., Ltd. of RMB1,500,000 of China information, management
Bl HER FE consulting and social
BRAA AR 1,500,0007T liance services

The investment in a jointly-controlled entity is indirectly held by

the Company.
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17. INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED 17. A—XHERBEEZEHERZKRE &)
ENTITY (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial TREAAEEHREHERMBEER
information of the Group's jointly-controlled entity: BME :
2012 201
—E——fF —T——F
US$'o00 US$'000
Group AEE FEx FEx
Share of the jointly-controlled entity's assets and ~ JE/G L FEIEHIE 2 2
liabilities: BERAE:
Current assets MBEE 16 17
Non-current assets FErEEE 1 1
Current liabilities mEBE (5) (5)
Net assets BEFE 12 13
Share of the jointly-controlled entity's results: FEAG R R TR 2 F4E -
Operating expenses Y (m (2)
Loss after tax Frii14 B8 (1) (2)
18. DEFERRED TAX 18. EZERHIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities/(assets) during the year FRELERBEE (BE) 2280T :

are as follows:

Deferred tax assets EERIBEEE

Decelerated Decelerated

tax depreciation tax depreciation

allowances allowances

IR IE R TIR

wERE TERE

2012 201

—E——fF —E——F

US$'000 Us$'000

Group rEE TE7x FET

At beginning of year REH] (111) (96)
Deferred tax credited to the income statement FRFFARER 2

during the year (Note 9) EEFIR (MIEE9) (4) (15)

Gross deferred tax assets at end of year RFE 2 BRI IR B E R (115) (1m1)
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18. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 18. iﬁﬁﬁlﬁ (%)
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE
Accelerated Accelerated

tax depreciation tax depreciation

allowances allowances
hnZEB 18 ERFRIE
mERE e
2012 2011
—E——fF —=——F
US$'000 US$'000
Group AEE FEx FEx
Gross deferred tax liabilities at beginning and RFH) M F4R 7 IRITE
at end of year HiEaEes 2 2
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and RAERY ETEEIREEERBRERD
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial position. FEFBARRNKPEE - LTI B RER
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the B EED 2 IRETIBAS R D AT
Group for financial reporting purposes:
2012 2011
—E—_—F ===
us$‘ooo US$'000
Group AEE FTEx FET
Deferred tax assets EERIREE (115) (111)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEBE 2 2
Net deferred tax assets recognised in REEU B RERZ
the consolidated statement of financial position LR IAE EFE (113) (109)
19. INVENTORIES 19. F&
2012 2011
—E—_—F —FE ==
us$‘ooo Us$'000
Group AEE FEx FET
Finished goods 2R G - 25
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

20. [EIRE 5 RRX

RBEHRR BUEEZRFIIZEZEHZ
FRie DA T

2012 20M

—E——fF —E=——F

US$'000 US$'000

Group rEH FEx FET
Within 30 days 30RAA 4,207 3,392
31 to 60 days 31E60K 785 1,020
61 to 90 days 61Z290K 265 373
91 to 365 days 91%E 365K 227 559
Over 1 year HBiE1F 545 532
6,029 5,876

Impairment A (662) (815)
5,367 5,061

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit, AEEETPZESBEREZUNEEFR

except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally 60 to 90 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivables balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
The carrying amount of the trade receivables approximates to its

BT WHEF—REWERIEMNRRE -
FEEH—MABOZENX - BFEEFHYE R
SEERE - ANEBEKEHRK D 2 E
WO FkTE M AR IR ) - R A E E BT
P UEEREEERR sfEEET
BT mER Ky 558 NEEFREEW
EORRE/RTEREAWERRLE K
HmoazBEGE - BUKRE SRR
f‘JQOF’iH&f’S%ﬁE K REEEEAFEE

fair value. ik
The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables B SRR REREBEBNT
are as follows:
2012 2011
= e
US$'000 Us$'000
Group rEH FER FET
At beginning of year REH] 815 1,251
Impairment losses recognised (Note 6) BRERREEE (Mite) 123 358
Amount written off as uncollectible sl AT Y Bl 2 28 (258) (790)
Exchange differences fEHZ% (18) (4)
At end of year R 662 815

MELEMERAT —T—_FFR
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—ET——FPA=+H

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate
carrying amount before provision of US$662,000 (2011:
US$815,000) relate to customers that were in financial difficulties
or were in default of payments and the receivables are not
expected to be recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered

20. EWWE SR (®

{55 51 BR 1 42 (8 5662,000% 7T (Z T ——
% : 815,000 70) KIERIEEE 5 U IR
ThEEBI SN EAEERBZEF
B ZEREWERZIBE A U[E o

AEBEREZEBEE SRR ZRE DT

to be impaired is as follows:

T -

2012 201

—E--F —T——%

US$'000 US$'000

Group rEH TER FET
Neither past due nor impaired 3 {2 160 B SkOR (B 2,627 1,567
Less than 3 months past due B B =& A 2,645 3,311
3 to 6 months past due mE=ZX{E A 64 91
Over 6 months past due 160 BRER 3 7 A A 31 92
5,367 5,061

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the Directors are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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3 4530 M SR 2 M MR B R K B R
BF  BERPAMLEROEE -

E B HE X RR B 2 FE W R B —HE R AR
SEAERFEACHZBILIEFAR - R
BERELR EFRABEAREHEEHRE
HRERE AAEEERABEAE
8 URRRZFEHRT2HEE -



21.

22,

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21. EfRIE - ZeRHEMEKRIE
RECEIVABLES
Group Company
rEE ARAH
2012 2011 2012 201
—B-——-F —T——F ZB-=§ —T——F
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FER FET TER FET
Prepayments AN IR 1,220 477 10 2
Deposits Ze 495 580 - -
Other receivables HAh & W kIR 1,617 1,717 - -
3,332 2,774 10 2
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The A FEEW RS EASRE - 5t A Lt 4k

financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables
for which there was no recent history of default.

Z oA Y EE T R )R8 2 R UK
HBR -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND BANK 22. RE&€RBEESZHEEBEHRBITHER
DEPOSIT
Group Company
rEH NN
2012 2011 2012 201
—EB--f —T—F ZB-ZHf —T——
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET FEx FET
Cash and bank balances e MIRITES 19,813 17,538 90 95
Less: Bank deposit with initial W MR TE R
term of over three months =ERZRITFR 1,997 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents B4 hBESEEER 17,816 17,538 90 95
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances RIERR - REBEUARE (AR
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to §|J@Ziﬁ(£&ﬁﬁ%§%@4,513,000%% (=
approximately US$4,513,000 (2011: US$1,677,000). RMB is not T-—F: 1677,000% ) ° A K # 1 7]
freely convertible into other currencies. However, under the =] E%T@ﬁﬁ{ﬁ%ﬁﬁg o AT ARIEFRE 2
People's Republic of China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations INEE RGO REEE - BERNIEEER

and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

T ARBENEREREETINE SRR
BZRITHARBHBRBHEMBER

ROTFRABEEEARTERNEAEZFH
MEFE - BBMEMER 2 FXYHA—H
EZAAAE  RFAKEZAKREH
EME > REEPEPFRZMETE -
RITERDFRNEBEIRENLRRZEE
RAFERTT -
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23. TRADE PAYABLES 23. BNESZERM
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RBEHR BNESEREFIREZEAHZ
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BRERDITIAT -
2012 201
—E—_F —F—
US$'000 US$'000
Group AEE T8 FET
Within 30 days 30K AA 3,416 3,518
31 to 60 days 31E60K 2,026 2,455
61 to 90 days 61E 90K 227 268
91 to 365 days 91%E365K 260 139
Over 1 year HBiE1F 68 292
5,997 6,672
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally ZERNESERIITEE - W —MRik60
settled on 60-day terms. REABRIEE ©
24. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. BtERARHEMENRIE
Group Company
rEE KA T
2012 2011 2012 201
—E——_F —ET—— —E—_—F —ZT——
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET TET FET
Accrued expenses fE=tE A 2,357 2,268 46 56
Other payables Hoh IR 6,217 4,045 - -
8,574 6,313 46 56
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term BN RIBIITEE - FHIEAR B MR
of two months. J=I
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25. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 25.

EERKEF

Group REHE

2012

—E—CF -

Note US$'000
B 5T TEx

201
T4
US$'000

TET

Defined benefit plan TEREE AT El (a) 840 900
Other long term post-employment benefits  E b & Hi{E 8 R (K1EF (b) 230 251
1,070 1,151
Notes: BieE
(a)  Defined benefit plan (a) EFERFFE
The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for all its qualifying FEBREMBSERAEBESRLEERNG

employees in Taiwan. Under the plan, the employees are entitled to retirement
benefits at 3% of final salary on attainment of a retirement age of 55.

According to the laws and regulations in Taiwan, the Group is obliged to
pay its employees in Taiwan, upon retirement, disability or death, post-
employment benefits based on the number of years of services and final
average salary. The Group carried out an actuarial valuation as at 30 April
2012 of its obligation for post-employment benefits payable to its employees
in Taiwan.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined
benefit obligations were carried out at 30 April 2012 and 2011 by Hsu Mao-
Chin Actuary, using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting period
were as follows:

&l o RIEZETE - B B ESSERRIK
R ERIRF D30 RIKEF ©

BEGEERIER - AEEER
NEERR  BARIEAEFEZE
BREERBFHRERTHHFEX
Zﬁiﬁff* —ZHFMA=1HE
BNEEET - RZBEMRE -

REBMAERBEZ SO HARBER
——FR=T——FNA=+HH

FRIFAES

HEeEREEX
F - ]Uiz,\:n
HRRIEF] o
B 2R BIRIK

& IR=%
HRESIBE

BARRRAEM EREE[MERET -

PRREPRKAB EEBERRMT ¢

2012 2011

—EB——F —E——%F

% %

Discount rate I = 1.75 1.75

Expected rate of return on plan assets SEEEZBHLDHRE 2.00 1.75

Expected rate of return on reimbursement right B4 2 B E R = N/A R N/A A~ A

Expected rate of salary increases TEEF B RE 2.00 1.00

Future pension increases RFBRSIGERE N/A R F N/A i A
The overall expected rate of return on plan assets is determined based on SHEIEE 7 BREEHRRRBENREHRE

the market expectations prevailing as at the end of the reporting period,
applicable to the period over which the obligations are to be settled.

AR ETRE RS TSEPRRMEE -

MEEEERAR

T _FFER
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25. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 25. EEEAKER @)
Notes: (continued) BiFE - (48)
(a) Defined benefit plan (continued) (a) EERAE (&)
The total expenses recognised in the consolidated income statement in ARG W RIER 2 st EIF AN T -

respect of the plan are as follows:

2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx F=7
Current service cost A R A 19 61
Interest cost FE R AN 16 20
Expected return on plan assets FHEIEE 2 TEEE R (3) (3)
Actuarial gains BB Y= (3) -
Net benefit expenses B FRE 29 78
The Group expects to contribute US$94,000 to its defined benefit plan in REBEEPR T -=F 2 RERAFEHEHRE
2013. 94,000 7T °
The movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as ARERBNETZREZEBMNT -
follows:
2012 2011
—B——F —T——F
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
At beginning of year REH 968 965
Current service cost A R A 19 61
Interest cost F B AN 16 20
Actuarial losses/(gains) on obligation EEzEEEE (W) 80 (77)
Benefits paid [=ENEEE] (69) (83)
Exchange difference FEH Z58 (16) 82
At end of year RELR 998 968
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25. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 25. EEERKER ()

Notes: (continued) M5t : (48)

(a) Defined benefit plan (continued) (a) EEEFTE (&
The movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows: TEIBEZATE

2012 2011

—T-——F —T——F

Us$'000 US$'000

FEn FET

At beginning of year REH 21 148
Actual return ER O3 2 2
Contributions by the Group AREEEK 74 128
Benefits paid [=ENEE (69) (83)
Exchange difference R ZE5E (4) 16
At end of year REFR 214 21

A reconciliation of the fair value of the plan assets and the present value
of the defined benefit obligations to the net value of assets and liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:

AEBEEAFERARERNEEREARGEAM
BiknKRERZ BERBEFEHRNT -

2012 2011

—E——F —T——F

US$'000 US$'000

FxEr FET

Fair value of plan assets FEIEECATE (214) (21)

Present value of defined benefit obligations REEMNETZHRE 998 968

784 757

Unrecognised net actuarial gains RERBHE M FRE 56 143

Net liabilities arising from defined benefit obligations AERNETELEZBEFE 840 900
The defined benefit contributions in Taiwan are made to a fund administered AGE 7 RERBRMMETTIA—K A& BETEE

by the government of Taiwan. The major categories of plan assets as
a percentage of the fair value of the total plan assets of the centrally
administered fund are as follows:

ZETEE - AEEETBRIMEZTRERE
CAEEERBEATEZBEDLMT

2012 2011

—B-—=F —E—%F

% %

Equity instruments AT A 51 51
Debt instruments BRITA 36 33
Deposits T 13 16
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25. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 25. EEEAKER @)
Notes: (continued) BisE : (48)
(a) Defined benefit plan (continued) (a) EERAE (&)
A five-year summary of the present value of the defined benefit obligations, RERABMERE FHEEERATE - FTEIEA
the fair value of the plan assets, the deficit in the plan and the experience NEtBlaE KRB AFEHENT

adjustment arising on plan liabilities are as follows:

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—B-—=F —T——F —T-TF _TTNF ZTITN\F
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FTER FET F=7 F=E7T FET

Present value of defined benefit obligations ~ RERHN & TIHE 998 968 965 743 852
Fair value of plan assets FEBEEQAFE (214) (211) (148) (112) (96)
Unrecognised actuarial gains AMERIBEE W 56 143 58 151 140
Deficit in the plan FHEIEAL 840 900 875 782 896
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities AEEBE LB AXK - - - - -
(b)  Other long term post-employment benefits (b) Ef@ﬁ?ﬁﬁéﬁﬁ‘ﬁﬂ
The balance represents provision for long service payment as required by BRDEET AAERMER 2B RARES 2
certain jurisdictions. Termination benefits are payable when employment %% %Lti?TUEMEETEiL%EHHHI :fﬁ
is terminated before the normal retirement date or whenever an employee B4 B FRRE R R Z S A8 N T 42 L AR B 2R
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. FA e
26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. BA
Shares idni)
2012 201
—g—=% —E——%
US$'000 Us$'000
FER FET
Authorised: SETE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,000,000,000/% &A% HI{E
US$0.02 each 0.023E T 2 E AR 40,000 40,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE
683,069,279 (2011: 683,069,279) 683,069,279 (Z=2—%:
ordinary shares of US$0.02 each 683,069,279) G EE
0.02FE L2 EmA% 13,661 13,661
Share options ERAE
Details of the Company's share option schemes are included in RN T) 2 BT 2 5 EH N RE M
Note 27 to the financial statements. 07 o
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

A share option scheme ("2002 Share Option Scheme") was
adopted by the Company pursuant to a resolution of the then
sole shareholder passed on 22 April 2002 for the primary purpose
of providing incentives or rewards to eligible persons for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Group. The Company
terminated the 2002 Share Option Scheme and adopted a new
share option scheme ("2011 Share Option Scheme") pursuant to
an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting of
the Company on 29 August 2011. The 2011 Share Option Scheme
will remain in force for a period of 10 years up to 2021. Under
the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the Company's board of directors
or a committee thereof may grant options to eligible persons to
subscribe for shares in the Company at a price per share of at
least the higher of (i) the closing price of a share as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
the offer of the relevant option; and (ii) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of offer, provided that the exercise price shall in no event
be less than the nominal amount of one share. Written acceptance
is required on acceptance of the grant of options. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all
outstanding options granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme
and any other scheme to be adopted by the Company from time to
time must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the share capital of the
Company in issue from time to time. The Company has no legal or
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the share options in
cash.

27.

BRESTE

ARBZBEESS (22 -FHERE
SED DR-ZTETFMA-FTZHRIE
ERME-BRRBBIABERMER T2
BH R RB NG S ER KU AREE
HEBMZAaERAL - ARAFTERER -
E——F N NAZTABERARARRBF
AReLBBz BEBRIARKLE-TT
—F RIS 8RR — TR R A AT 8
(ZB——FERESH) —FT——F
BEREAES - EARE-_T - —F 1L
RB+F - RE-_T——FERESS
ARREZSHEZZRE SN RERER
TRERALURBARA KD SR
BEZLRIBXMBEMZEARTER
Fro AR R — i N e BB R gL XA
HERZWME: RINMRXMAER2ETAH
WHERMIIARRRMDNEEMEAH
AAEZEXBEZFARTE (ANKSES
#E) o MEFT R (E B WA AR R — R
ZHE - AEBMALTREMNERERAR
HERER - RIE-T—— FRREE
RARB TR TRAZEFMEMBETEE
BREBEEARTEZBRETERAHTZ
BhREER  TRBEAAXAQRTED R
TR 2300 « RABWEEEKEEEE
PAIR & 8 101 S (8 S B SR -

MELEMERAT —T—_FFR

131



132

Notes to the Financial Statements

B SRR M
30 April 2012
—E——FMA=+H

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The movements in share options under the 2002 Share Option

27. BRESTE @)
UTAEN " _FHBETET 8B

Scheme during the year were as follows: R e
2012 2011
—E—_F S

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options

hn#EF IniEF5
TEE BRERE TEE  BEREHE
HK$ per share '000 HK$ per share ‘000
BRET T FRET T
At beginning of year REY] 0.801 17,675 0.491 41,655
Exercised during the year RERNBITE - - 0.164 (4,000)
Lapsed during the year RERBE KK 0.700 (375) 0.282 (19,980)
At end of year NGRS 0.803 17,300 0.801 17,675

Share options outstanding at the end of the reporting period have

AT ARBERRERITEBREZITE

the following exercise periods and exercise prices: HARITHE -
2012 —E—-—F
Number of
options Exercise price* per share Exercise period
BREHE BROTEE  TEH
'000 HK$
T BT
13,666 0.830 24 August 2008 to 23 August 2013
CEENFNACZtHNBE=ZE-=FN\A=+=H
3,634 0.700 25 August 2010 to 24 August 2015
—E-ZEF/\A-+HEBE-ZE-AF/N\A=+HEAH
17,300
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 27. BREE

201 —ET——fF
Number of
options Exercise price® per share Exercise period
B ERR BRITEE  TEH
'000 HK$
T HIT
13,666 0.830 24 August 2008 to 23 August 2013
—EENFNAZtOBEE=Z—=F\A=+=H
4,009 0.700 25 August 2010 to 24 August 2015

—E-EFN\AZ+HABE-ZT—AF/\AZ=+MAH

17,675

* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case of * AR BIR AR B AR s B TAL R s E b Fa L

rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share B) - BRIEZITEEAEIRETAZE -

capital.
No share option was granted during the year (2011: Nil). FALERDERE (ZZ——F &) o
The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was ERHBRAEEERE 2 X FEDEAE
estimated as at the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes N —8RTEEREXNRAKELE B HEMG
valuation model, taking into account the terms and conditions T WE RZEERERE 2 BEREE
upon which the options were granted. The following table lists the %o TRINNEAZEX OB AIER

inputs to the model used:

24 August 25 August
Date of grant 2007 2009
—BBLHF ZBEBAF
g l=p NA=+MWMAH NBE=+%&H
Share price at date of grant RIEE A B2 R(E
(HK$ per share) (FRBT) 0.830 0.700
Weighted average share price AR E
(HK$ per share) (FRET) 1.00 0.25
Expected volatility (%) T8 HA R 1 (00) 37.97 165.11
Risk-free interest rate (%) 42 3 [ ) 2R (o)) 4.16 1.55
Expected life of options (year) BERSRE 2 TEETHAPR (4F) 3.5 10 4.5 3.510 4.5
Dividend yield (%) P& 2 (o) 4.32 8.89
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

28.

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data
over the past three years and is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 17,300,000
(2011: 17,675,000) share options outstanding under the 2002
Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining
share options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 17,300,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of
approximately US$346,000 (2011: US$354,000) and share premium
of approximately US$1,439,000 (2011: US$1,465,000) (before issue
expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 17,300,000 (2011: 17,325,000) share options outstanding
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 3% (2011: 3%) of the Company's shares in issue as
at that date.

RESERVES

(a) Group
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 64 of
the financial statements.
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27.

28.

BRETE )

IR TR R RE=E I ES
BEHE  RAURRALEEZITER
o FERIE R R TS - BB
BARKBE 22 AUKRRERLER -

EEMBRE s eBERARTE
ZitE® .

RBERR A2 BERE-ZEE-F
R ERT IR T M R TT R 2 B AR
17,300,00017 (=& ——4F : 17,675,000 ) °
igR T 2 BRI ATE - AIIRIBEARAF
RITZEARERE  HEEHAQFAEEIN
E£717,300,0000% & @ A% - i A KD &
BN B AN#)346,0005 T (ZF——4F ¢
354,000 7T ) M 491,439,000 7T (=& ——
F 1 1,465000% 7T) CGRIIBREITER) -

RHEARFBHREBE  RAGRE-F
TR IR L T A RITE 2 BB
# £17,300,00017 (== — —4F : 17,325,000
7)) AEARQARIRZ B B EIT R Z #93%
T2 1 30) -

e

(@) F&KH
AEBRAFERBEFE2FHRE
BREZEH2IINPHRRFARZ
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28. RESERVES (continued)

28. @& &

(b) Company (b) AATFE
Share Capital
Share option  redemption Contributed Retained
premium reserve reserve surplus earnings Total
BERE E4EE
R & E 1 e BHES REEF &t
Note US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
i3 TEn TER TEn T£n TER TEn
Balance at 1 May 2010 R-E-ZERF-ALY 21,632 295 48 9,946 11,689 43610
Total comprehensive income FE2ANA
for the year o - - - - 647 647
Issue of shares BIRG 1,068 - - - - 1,068
Exercise of share option TR E 1 (7) - - - 4
Equity-settled share option AR S, 7 2 B B
arrangements ZH - 58 - - - 58
Share options lapsed EREH
during the year ZBRE - (123) - - 123 -
Final 2010 dividend paid ERNZZ-ZFERERE - - - - (655) (655)
Special 2010 dividend paid ENZZ-ZEHIRE - - - - (5,242) (5,242)
Interim 2011 dividend paid BNZE——F48kEe 1 - - - - (272) (272)
At 30 April 2011 R-2--5MA=1H 22,711 223 48 9,946 6200 39218
Balance at 1 May 2011 R=E——FhA—-B&H 2, 223 48 9946 6,290 39,218
Total comprehensive income EE2ERA
for the year % - - - - 70 70
Equity-settled share option DA S? 7 2 B e
arrangements T - 1 - - - 1
Share options lapsed FREH
during the year R - (8) - - 8 -
Interim 2012 dividend paid BRZZ-——448ks N - - - - (773) (773)
At 30 April 2012 R-E-—EMA=1+AH 22,111 226 48 9,946 5,595 38,526
Representing: H
Final 2012 dividend proposed ~ BER=—Z——FKHRE 1 - - - - 439 439
Others Hit 22,71 226 48 9,946 5156 38,087
22,1 226 48 9,946 5,595 38,526

MELEMERAT —T—_FFR
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28. RESERVES (continued)
(b) Company (continued)

The Company's contributed surplus represents the excess
of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the reorganisation, over the nominal value of
the Company's shares issued in exchange therefor. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed surplus
account of the Company is distributable to equity holders.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend or
make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or
would after the payment be unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or (i) the realisable value of its assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities

28. & &)
(b) A&AQF (&)
KRABIZE

ﬁ%qﬂf”ﬁﬁ DK

_E(\\ &3

b‘é
ERC 4B

and its issued share capital and share premium accounts.

29. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES/DISSOLUTION OF  29.

ZHBAFRNZ A
LX?&%HXT’J?FTW????ZH&@E@Z
ZHo-RIEBEBERE—NAN—FAQF
o ARNRBIZEBEHRGER T HDIK
THE@EAB A AM - AAEE T
FERTEERIORN BN ERE
(i) 1+ 1%
_jZ(II)H,é(FZT
ﬁ?iﬁ&ﬂﬁ‘ﬁﬂxﬁilf/ﬁﬁﬂxh/

L A BRI *E%FEZHF)’TH&E%
NP EBRAR

/ii'iﬁ 3
AR (EE

HEWBERE, BHE—RWEQE

A SUBSIDIARY
(a) Disposal of subsidiaries (a) HEKMEBLR
2012 201
—EF--F —F——F
Note us$'o00 Us$'000
B =E FER FET
Net assets disposed of: EHEZEETE :
Other receivables H A EUFRIE 3 -
Other payables H Ath pE 1~ 3k 18 (3) -
Exchange reserve realised Eﬁbfuﬁ B 1 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBEAR 72%@?& 6 191 13
192 13
Satisfied by: ATHN T AT
Cash Be 192 13
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents Eﬁiﬂj%W\E/&@ﬁ@Zﬁﬁ&ﬁ{ﬁg
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: BIER ZRAFEITET
2012 2011
—E——fF —=——F
US$'000 US$'000
TR FEx
Cash consideration and net inflow of  IR&REMEHENE
cash and cash equivalents in respect NAEHs e IR
of the disposal of subsidiaries FEEB 2 MANFHE 192 13
(b) Dissolution of a subsidiary (b) BH—RHNERF
2012
—E—_—F
Note US$'000
Bt aE TER
Net assets dissolved Bz EEFE -
Exchange reserve realised b X EEEIR 97
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary REN— KM BN R 2 518 6 (97)
Net inflow of cash and cash R — KM B AR
equivalents in respect of the 2BEeMREFEIAR
dissolution of a subsidiary A ERR -
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30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 30. RARAE
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not RIEER - R BRER AR REHEZ X
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: RBEWT
Group Company
TEE PN
2012 2011 2012 201
—E2-—_—_F —ET——F —B-—_—_Hf T —%F
Uss$'oo0 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET FEx FET
Guarantees given to banks in WERFUTZHZ
connection with facilities BhE MM RTT
granted to: YEH 2 IR -
Subsidiaries B /8 2 &) - - 32,853 32,853
As at 30 April 2012, the banking facilities granted to the WN-ZZE——FMWA=+H8  REAQRM
subsidiaries subject to guarantees given to the banks by WITIEL < ERMF THE AR 2 BITH
the Company were utilised to the extent of approximately & B E) A #95,906,000E T (Z T ——4F ¢
US$5,906,000 (2011: US$6,704,000). 6,704,000%7%) °
31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 31. KREHERH
The Group leases certain of its office premises, staff quarters, AEBREBELKEHETHMAESTHA

furniture and equipment under operating lease arrangements. The
leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.

At 30 April 2012, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

B -BIESE GRARERE - ZFH
E7HEH  PEEEZERMBOENZ

ARA -
R-Z-—EMA=+AE AEERER
AT TR B TSI B B 2 RO

follows: FEMESHIENAT ¢
Office premises Furniture and
and staff quarters equipment
WAEBUREIRS FEMREE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E—_F === —E—_F —F——
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Group REE FEx FET FEx FET
Within one year —FR 1,863 966 125 81
In the second to fifth years, E_ETFERE
inclusive (BREEMTF) 1,848 482 279 27
3,711 1,448 404 108
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no operating MNEBEHAKR  AATWEHEA T KEHE
lease arrangements. g2
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32. COMMITMENTS 32. FA&IE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in Note Br b SCBsE3 1Pl 2 48 & EFIEIN - LA
31 above, the Group had the following capital commitments for TARAAEENRBEHREBEYME  KE
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment at the end of the B BAESE -

reporting period:

2012 2011
—E—C—F —T—%
US$'000 Us$'000
Group rEH TER FET
Contracted, but not provided for BETAMEREE 25 170
Authorised, but not contracted for BEZEERETH - 7
At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have any RIREHIR » ANRQ B EATa] & A EHE o
capital commitments.
33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. FREALRS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these ) BAFHHFERHEMIBOMAZRS
financial statements, the Group had the following significant Oh - REBFRNERBHEATHEITIA
transactions with related parties during the year: TERRS :
Group
rEH
2012 201
—E—_—F —_F—
Name of related parties Nature of transactions Note us$'o00 US$'000
BREALTER REME F5E FEx FET
Sky Fame Group Limited Rental expense 0 308 128
RiEEE AR AT HefMx
Wellbuild International Limited Rental expense (i) 42 -
ZEEEAERAA Hex
Midway Enterprises (Guang Zhou) Ltd. Commission income (iii) - 22
BMPERARAREEEARAR HE WA
Wonderful World (HK) Limited Sampling charges (iv) - 18
EB (BB) BRAT E¥NE =
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(continued)
Notes:

(i) Sky Fame Group Limited (“Sky Fame") is 100% owned by Mr. WANG
Lu Yen, a Director, and his spouse. The rental expense was determined
based on the market rate and floor area.

(i) Wellbuild International Limited ("Wellbuild", together with its
subsidiaries, the "Wellbuild Group") is 100% owned by Roly
International Holdings Ltd., which is a controlling shareholder of the
Company. The rental expense was determined based on the market
rate and floor area.

(iii) Midway Enterprises (Guang Zhou) Ltd. was 100% owned by Roly
International Holdings Ltd., which is a controlling shareholder of
the Company. Midway Enterprises (Guang Zhou) Ltd. ceased to be
a subsidiary of Roly International Holdings Ltd. with effect from 8
September 2011. The commission income was received based on the
commission rate agreed by the parties.

(iv) Wonderful World (HK) Limited was 100% owned by Roly International
Holdings Ltd., which is a controlling shareholder of the Company.
Wonderful World (HK) Limited ceased to be a subsidiary of Roly
International Holdings Ltd. with effect from 8 September 2011. The
sampling charges were determined based on the amount agreed by
both parties.

Commitments with related parties

(M) Linmark (HK) Limited entered into a tenancy
agreement with Sky Fame whereby Sky Fame agreed to
lease to Linmark (HK) Limited a residential apartment
for a term of 24 months commencing on 1 May
2011 at a monthly rent of approximately US$26,000
(equivalent to HK$200,000). The Group expects the
total rent payable to Sky Fame for the year ending
30 April 2013 to be approximately US$308,000
(equivalent to HK$2,400,000).

(i)  Tamarind International Limited (together with its
subsidiaries, the "Tamarind Group") entered into
a master lease agreement with Wellbuild whereby
Wellbuild Group has agreed to lease to Tamarind
Group certain portion of a commercial building in
Shanghai, PRC for a term of 3 years commencing
on 1 April 2012 at a monthly rent of approximately
US$42,000 (equivalent to HK$330,000). The Group
expects the annual rent payable to Wellbuild for the
three years ending 30 April 2015 to be approximately
US$504,000 (equivalent to HK$3,960,000),
US$504,000 (equivalent to HK$3,960,000) and
US$462,000 (equivalent to HK$3,630,000),
respectively.

33. EBREALRSE @)

(a)

(&)
BiRE

0] REEEARAR ([HE)) mEEEL
£ (BF) RERB2EHES - HEMX
T2ENERE MERERET

(i) BEREEERLF ([BE] HZEAWE
REGESBEEE]) AARFZER
BRE2EBEEZRERARNEERS - B
EHXNSEMERS RMIEHAEBEETE °

(iii) BMNFEARREEERARBARARE
BRREHRBERIEREBRAREZERS -
BNFEARRCESRARNBEZE——
EHHAELTEE%WIWfWEE
RIZMBERR - ZASWATIRES HE
Zﬁﬁ%%iﬁ%ﬂ

(iv) =B (F8) BRARBARTZERER
2RERERERAFTEERESE /M
(%) BRARRZ-ZZE——FNANA
RTBRERERERARRF ZMER

o BRAULE THAR IR 8 U 163 5 2 K R T
HR o

A RS A 2 G

() ME(FE) BRAREBER
VHEERRE BUHBEREM
WE (B%) BRARMAE—Fr
FEAB BA-_ZE——FHA
— Bzt A84E A  EAMES
#926,0003 7T (48 % 74200,00078
L) c AEEBEHREE T —
=FEMA=+HIEFEENEE
Z B2 49308,000F T (1B
#2,400,0008 7T ) °

(i) Tamarind International Limited (&
ﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁ%’_\_ i F8 A& [ Tamarind
%J) BRI AEEW

%Flit FESERERRSM
Elfﬂi"f—mg RHRE S E
EXERXEZHEBRGD BT —
—FMNA—BRAAB=F
A2 442,000 T (HER
330,000 7T) - NEETEEELE
—E-AFWA=+HLE=ME
FEENEEZE2FER2S 5
#9504,0003% 7T (#8 %5 703,960,000
7 JT) - 504,000% 7T (M & B
3,960,000 L) K&462,0003% JT
(#855543,630,000/8 7T ) °
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(©)

(d)

Balances with a related party

33. EREALRE @)

© HAEBEALZES

(i) At 30 April 2012, the Group had prepaid rent and (i)
rental deposit of US$24,000 (2011: Nil) to a related

company;

(i)  Details of the Group's balance with a jointly- (ii)
controlled entity as at the end of the reporting period
is disclosed in Note 17 to the financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: (d)

R-ZE——FMWA=+H &%
EEEN—XREMBEQRZEN
e KL% £24000F T (=
T——F )

RIREHAR - ANE B R
B2 BN UERERM T
17HEE o

2012 20M

=F-=F =

US$'000 US$'000

FEr FET

Short term employee benefits RHEESET 1,198 1,844

Post-employment benefits EERKEF

- defined contribution plans - R IGTE 49 66

Equity-settled share option expense PARRIESZ 1 2 B e B 4 21
Total compensation paid to key TRTFEEERAEZ

management personnel HoNsEsE 1,251 1,931

Further details of Directors' emoluments are included in

Note 7 to the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a)(i)
and (a)(ii) above also constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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any financial liability.

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34. SR T EER
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial FHEANCHTANREHRZETDENT
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Group AEE
Financial assets tHEE
Loans and Available-for-sale
receivables financial asset Total
ERREWFE THEECREE CH
2012 2011 2012 201 2012 2011
“®--f %% Z¥--f “T--F ZR-2F _TF
Note Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
iz Txx TET Txr TEx S TE1
Available-for-sale financial asset ~ A[{EHESREE 15 - - 84 84 84 84
Trade receivables EWE FER 20 5,367 5,061 - - 5,367 5,061
Financial assets included in HPNENEEE
prepayments, deposits e REMEK
and other receivables FEZGREE 21 2,112 2,297 - - 2,112 2,297
Bank deposit with initial term of  #JiaFREB=EA
over three months ZBRIER 22 1,997 - - - 1,997 -
Cash and cash equivalents RHeRALEERE 2 17,816 17,538 - - 17,816 17,538
27,292 24,896 84 84 27,376 24,980
Financial liabilities THEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
REBHERATIREZERAE
2012 20M
—E——fF —T——fF
Note us$'ooo US$'000
B =E TExT FET
Trade payables JEE SRR 23 5,997 6,672
Financial liabilities included in FAAEEER R HEM
accruals and other payables ENFIBEz2mEE 24 6,217 4,045
12,214 10,717
Company PN
Financial assets THEE
Loans and receivables
EXRREWRRE
2012 20M
—E——fF —E=——F
Note US$'000 US$'000
Bt aE FEx FET
Cash and cash equivalents e RIS EEEE 22 90 95
As at the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have REER - ARAWEANEREE -

MELEMERAT —T—_FFR

141



Notes to the Financial Statements
RS T
30 April 2012
=

35.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's and the

35. AFERLAFEEER

AEERARAREMITAZERERAT

Company's financial instruments are as follows: (ERUNNE
Group rEH
Financial assets cREE
Carrying amounts Fair value
FREE AFE
2012 201 2012 201
—B-——-—fF —ZFT——F ZZB--—f —T——%F
us$'ooo US$'000 us$'ooo US$'000
FEx FET FTER FErx
Available-for-sale financial Al E SR
asset BE 84 84 84 84
Trade receivables FEULE 5 BR TN 5,367 5,061 5,367 5,061
Financial assets included in FTATENRIE - e
prepayments, deposits and o E At pE UM SR IR
other receivables ZEmEE 2,112 2,297 2,112 2,297
Bank deposit with initial M TF sk B E =& A
term of over three months ZIRITIFER 1,997 - 1,997 -
Cash and cash equivalents e RIRESEEIEH 17,816 17,538 17,816 17,538
27,376 24,980 27,376 24,980
Financial liabilities TRAE
Carrying amounts Fair value
FREE AFE
2012 2011 2012 20M
—E——F —E——F —E——F —E——F
Us$'oo0 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET FER Fx=x
Trade payables e E 5 BRK 5,997 6,672 5,997 6,672
Financial liabilities FAARRTERA R
included in accruals HAth e RIE 2
and other payables cRaE 6,217 4,045 6,217 4,045
12,214 10,717 12,214 10,717
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)

AFERAFEEBHR 9

Company AAT
Financial assets THEE
Carrying amounts Fair value
FREE RFE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--F 22— B ZZT——%F
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
TER FET FERT FET
Cash and cash equivalents BeNIRGEEIER 90 95 90 95

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have
any financial liability.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sales.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair values:

The fair values of bank deposit with initial term of over three
months, cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade
payables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, financial liabilities included in accruals and other
payables, approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments. The fair value of the
available-for-sale financial asset is determined with reference to
the price quoted by the revelant club.

Fair value hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair value measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: fair value measured based on valuation techniques for
which all inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3: fair value measured based on valuation techniques for
which any inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs)

RBERR - AR EEFNESREE

ERMEENBBEZAFERZIARER
RZET (MERERBREE) BEARS
NZAIRZZEEARR °

TNETTERBR T ANMEE AFE

M EREa=MAZRITER Be X
ReEBEER RBUEIER ENES

R STATERN A - e R E WK
ﬁZﬁﬂéé\ﬁA%ﬁ%%& L FE 1
HEzEMEBECATE  HEAK@E
BE RRAEBRELTARZEIAZEGH
HEPMY - AIHHEEREEZAFE
T2 RIBESATATRERET -
AEEER
AEBGAUTEREEEELEESR
TEZAYE:

F—E: RRFEEXRBRNEARMESLZ
WE CRERE) tEZRFE

E-F BREERGHEZATE WX
%A BTS2 Fi 8 A R
B A TR - WHOAR
AT EABEAYE

FZE: REERIGAEZAFE S M
FHERTGZMAER AELIFK
BABREMSEE (THBEH
AB) B AHEAKRLIFE

BEEATE
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continues) 35. A2FERAFEER &
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEBR (&)
Asset measured at fair value: BEATEHECEE
Group rEER
As at 30 April 2012 R-ZE——-FMA=+AH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—JE gy E=fE aF
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FE5x FEx FEx FEx
Available-for-sale financial asset AJft HE S g EE 84 - - 84
As at 30 April 2011 RZZE——FMNA=+H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
I F= E=E &5t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET FET FET
Available-for-sale financial asset AJftHESREE 84 - - 84
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FA F-EBHEEZE_Es HAYEAFERT
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into ECEE TEERIIEESE-E (=
or out of Level 3 (2011: Nil). T——F )
The Company did not have any financial assets and financial RZBE——FR_FT——FUA=+8"
liabilities measured at fair value as at 30 April 2012 and 2011. AARWELMIEATFEFEZEREE
RemaE-
36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. BiEMEEBEZEREEK

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and
bank balances. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations. It is, and
has been throughout the year under review, the Group's policy
that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's short term interest-bearing
bank deposits with a floating interest rate.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate swaps to hedge
its exposure to interest rate risks.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held

BRREEEEREE &)

RS
REBEARZNT S EEGERESHAR
SEEEF X GG SRITFHRER -

RE B ERT AT F K42 B A 4 A 8
MERE R o

TEMEEFEHMEEERETENER
T AEBERBRBAGA RAEBR RS

constant, of the Group's profit before tax and the Group's equity. HAEG IR R F E ) BURIE -
2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
Increase/ in profit in profit
(decrease) in before tax before tax
basis points and equity and equity
Y KRIaANRES BRUEAENRER
#gim, D) #gm, CRD) i, Cid)
US$'000 US$'000
Group REE FEx FET
United States dollar ETT 50 99 88
United States dollar xETT (50) (99) (88)
Foreign currency risk S L B
The Company's functional currency is the United States dollar ARBNINEEE AETT  KEBHHER

and the functional currencies of majority of the subsidiaries
are the United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar. The Group's
transactions, trade receivables and trade payables are mainly
denominated in these two currencies.

As the exchange rate of the United States dollar and Hong Kong
dollar is pegged, management considers the foreign exchange
risk in this respect is not significant. The Group has certain
investments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed
to foreign currency translation risk. However, as the net foreign
exchange exposure of the foreign operations is not significant, the
Group does not actively hedge this foreign exchange exposure.

The Group periodically reviews monetary assets and liabilities held
in currencies other than the United States dollar and Hong Kong
dollar to ensure that net exposure is kept at an acceptable level,
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

AININEEE ST BT - ARBEHX
7 BRRESEARENESRRXEEZMN
i mEE5IE

MRETEBTTE RS BUILERER
AR TERIMNERBRIE TEKX - AEHE
RBINEBHEEETRE MRFEEF
BERAEINEHRERR - AT - ARES
B FINERBAEL FEKX  BAK
M B A 30 S AR L SNE R o

AREEE T RmET R KRBT AINE B R
ﬁﬁ’]ff%é?&%L FEOR A FE 1 5 B B
MERAESKE  TEBEFERZEY

HERESNERR o
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The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which
comprise a bank deposit with initial term of over three months,
cash and cash equivalents, an available-for-sale financial asset,
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations
of credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty, by
geographical region and by industry sector. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group has certain concentration of credit
risk on the Group's trade receivables, as the amounts due from
the largest five debtors amounted to approximately US$2,930,000
(2011: US$1,825,000), representing 54.6% (2011: 36.1%) of the
Group's trade receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk,
management continuously monitors the level of exposure to
ensure that follow-up actions are taken promptly to reduce the
risk exposure or to recover overdue balances. The Group will also
continuously exploit new opportunities and forge relationships
with new customers with the aim of broadening its clientele.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in Note 20
to the financial statements.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. Bi¥EMEREBEZERBUER (&)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued) SN RS ()
Certain monetary assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB. ETEBREERBEAAREIER - TX
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the NREEREHR EEEMTEAE
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in RMB exchange BIHAEZBAT BREBEERAED
rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit NTEEZS  REEBORBARNEAR
before tax due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and MIE RS IR S o BURE -
liabilities.
2012 201
—E-C=fF —F——1F
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
in foreign in profit in profit
currency rate before tax before tax
SPEE [E R R A1 3% Fl Bt Bl g A
EFH (CFER)  #MmCR2) 8 CFd)
% US$'000 US$'000
Group KEE SFEST FET
If United States dollar weakens  {HZEJT 7 AR
against RMB irAl] 5 223 81
If United States dollar =TT AR
strengthens against RMB FHE (5) (223) (81)
Credit risk EE R

AEBREELERAREERHINE=T
R AKREBRBREMBERBEENR
HOEPEEITEREZER - 1IN &
SEERERRBUIRER  Filt A%
EASNERARL TEKX -

AEBEMBEREE (BIE—@ENHFRS
B-EAZRITER ReMhBEEFER
B AfthESREE REEZERR
e MEMBKTIR) 2 ERERR - TIRA
TR R < I - MR AR ERZ
FTAZKHEE-

HRAEEReHBERUTMEERITNE
ZHXRS TAEERHERSR - EER
SHEREREER, /HH  ERITE
REE - PREBR AEEREKRE S
EREETETAENEERR  EBRA
K& A FIE 492,930,000F ¢ (ZF ——
4 :1,825000%70) ' HASEEERE FEE
FAEI54.600 (ZF ——F :36.1%) ° & T R
REERE EEEREZERARKRKE -
VAREAR BN B SR BN BR 1T B) - JRUK & B
o BEmBER c REBMBEED
CFEK YEMRFEVEE  UWHRE
BEPER -

FRAASERREESERELNEER
e — S B AR B TR M 208

5= o



36.

37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of banking facilities.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:
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Within one year

—FR

2012 2011

et By —T——f

us$'o00 Us$'000

Group rEE FEx FET

Trade payables B E SRR 5,997 6,672
Financial liabilities included in accruals and st AJEST & B K& E At FE A

other payables HEZzREE 6,217 4,045

12,214 10,717

At 30 April 2012, the utilised banking facilities of US$5,906,000
(2011: US$6,704,000) granted to the subsidiaries subject to
guarantees given to the banks by the Company is repayable on
demand.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders' value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended
30 April 2012 and 30 April 2011.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders'
equity.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 13 July 2012.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HFMBHE

RESULTS =
Year ended 30 April
HBENA=THILEE
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
“ETN\F ZTTNF ZTITF T——F ZB--F
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
FET FET FET FET FEx
REVENUE Wz 289,707 195,762 93,526 95,763 100,621
Cost of sales SHE R A (260,109)  (159,823) (67,200) (72,791) (77,123)
Gross profit EH 29,598 35,939 26,326 22,972 23,498
Other income HAb WA 2,594 1,846 2,472 1,362 1,399
General and administrative expenses  —#% RITIREI & (39,855) (33,309) (25,647) (22,007) (22,014)
Restructuring costs HAER - (1,719) (1,362) (1,556) -
Gain on liquidation of a subsidiary ~ —ZRMBARERZ Wz - - 5,255 - -
Loss on deregistration of branches /A FIBUE M 2 518 - - (1,036) - -
Impairment loss on goodwill EESGRE 3 (3,000) (3,000) - - -
Impairment loss on patents and 2R R EERE
trademarks &8 (10,254) (10,137) - - -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz W - 102 - 13 191
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary BB —FKIB LR ZERE - - - - (97)
Operating profit/(loss) R (E18) (20,917) (10,278) 6,008 784 2,977
Interest income 2 A 598 149 53 5 55
Finance costs S ER (418) (52) - - -
Share of loss of el —R LR
a jointly-controlled entity TH B EE (45) (4) (4) (2) (1)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRADER (E8) (20,782) (10,185) 6,057 787 3,031
Income tax (expense)/credit Fris® (Fs),/ 4840 365 (2,069) (138) (142) (247)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEHN,/(EE) (20,417) (12,254) 5919 645 2,784
Attributable to: AT &R
Owners of the Company ZAN/NGIE 2SN (12,789) (8,350) 5919 645 2,784
Non-controlling interest PR (7,628) (3,904) - - -
(20,417) (12,254) 5919 645 2,784
Dividends 85 - 1,891 6,548 272 1,212
Earnings/(loss) per share (US cents) — &AREF] /(E18) (1)
Basic AR (1.9) (1.2) 0.9 0.1 0.4
Diluted e N/A TER  N/A TER 09 0.1 0.4
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE

At 30 April
ROA=+H
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
“TRN\F —BRNEF —F-TF —_T—F —¥--F
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us§$'00  US$'000
TET TET TET TET TET

Non-current assets IEREEE 47,309 28,042 27,312 26,899 27,540
Current assets mBNEE 56,320 51,662 33,768 25,398 28,512
Total assets BERE 103,629 79,704 61,080 52,297 56,052
Current liabilities mEaE (49,922) (39,510) (18,701) (14,398) (16,039)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (1,189) (1,192) (1,254) (1,151) (1,070)
Total liabilities BB (51,111) (40,702) (19,955) (15,549) (17,109)
Net assets BEFE 52,518 39,002 41,125 36,748 38,943
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Corporate Information

NRIBE R

Executive Directors
WANG Lu Yen (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Director
WONG Wai Ming

Independent non-executive Directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS

Executive committee
WANG Lu Yen (Chairman of the Committee)
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis

Audit committee

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius (Chairman of the Committee)
WANG Arthur Minshiang

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS

Remuneration committee

WANG Arthur Minshiang (Chairman of the Committee)
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

WANG Lu Yen

Nomination committee

WANG Lu Yen (Chairman of the Committee)
WANG Arthur Minshiang

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

Company secretary
CHEUNG Hoi Yin, Brenda

Registered office
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

Head office and principal place of business
1123, Kowloonbay International Trade & Exhibition Centre,

1 Trademart Drive, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Principal share registrar and transfer office
HSBC Securities Services (Bermuda) Limited

6 Front Street,

Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office
Tricor Standard Limited

26th Floor, Tesbury Centre,

28 Queen's Road East,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Auditors

Ernst & Young

22nd Floor, CITIC Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue,
Central, Hong Kong

Principal bankers

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Level 10, HSBC Main Building,

1 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
13th Floor, Standard Chartered Bank Building,
4-4A Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

Citibank, N.A.
48th Floor, Citibank Tower, Citibank Plaza,
3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong
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Shareholder Information

AR E R

Listing Listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
since 10 May 2002

Stock Code © 915

Board Lot : 2,000

Par Value US$0.02

Trading Currency HK$

Financial calendar 2012

Financial year ended

Full year results announced

Register of members closed
(for ascertaining shareholders' rights to attend and
vote at annual general meeting)

Annual general meeting

Ex-dividend date for final dividend

Register of members closed (for determining
entitlement to final dividend)

Record date for final dividend

Despatch of dividend warrants

Interim results to be announced

30 April 2012
13 July 2012

23-27 August 2012
27 August 2012
29 August 2012

31 August-4 September 2012

4 September 2012

on or about 17 September 2012
mid of December 2012

*

subject to change

Final dividend

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of 0.50 HK cent per ordinary
share in respect of the year ended 30 April 2012. Subject to shareholders' approval, the
final dividend will be paid in cash to shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on Tuesday, 4 September 2012.

Dividend warrants will be despatched to shareholders on or about Monday, 17
September 2012.

Closure of register of members for final dividend
For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the final dividend in respect of the
year ended 30 April 2012, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 31 August 2012 to Tuesday, 4 September 2012, both days inclusive. In order
to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Hong Kong branch share
registrar of the Company, Tricor Standard Limited, not later than 4.30 p.m. on Thursday,
30 August 2012.

Closure of register of members for annual general

meeting

For the purpose of ascertaining the shareholders' rights of attending and voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Thursday, 23 August 2012 to Monday, 27 August 2012, both days inclusive.
In order to be entitled to attend the annual general meeting, all completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Hong
Kong branch share registrar of the Company, Tricor Standard Limited, not later than
4.30 p.m. on Wednesday, 22 August 2012.

Shareholder services
For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the Company's Hong
Kong branch share registrar:

Tricor Standard Limited

26th Floor, Tesbury Centre,

28 Queen's Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone:  (852) 2980 1768
Facsimile: (852) 2528 3158

Holders of the Company's shares should notify the Hong Kong branch share registrar
promptly of any change of addresses.

Investor relations

For enquiries relating to investor relations, please contact:

Linmark Group Limited
1123, Kowloonbay International Trade & Exhibition Centre,
1 Trademart Drive, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone:  (852) 2753 7373
Facsimile: (852) 2721 6554
Email: ir@linmark.com

Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2012
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Linmark Group Limited

MEEERRAF "
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(RBEFEEMRLZBRARF)

1123, Kowloonbay International Trade & Exhibition Centre
1 Trademart Drive, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong

ERENENEERBEE - RAREEERED L 123 E

Tel E&E @ (852) 2753 7373
Fax {8E : (852) 2721 6554
http://www.linmark.com

*For identification purpose only {58 5]
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